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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REVIEW REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheetaiofan Semiconductor Manufacturing
Company Limited as of September 30, 2009 and 2808,the related statements of income and
cash flows for the nine months then ended. Thiesendial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is¢ae a report on these financial statements
based on our reviews.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with Statémme Auditing Standards No. 36, “Review
of Financial Statements,” issued by the Auditingrsards Committee of the Accounting Research
and Development Foundation of the Republic of ChinA review consists principally of
applying analytical procedures to financial data amking inquiries of persons responsible for
financial and accounting matters. It is substélgtiess in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with auditing standards generally aedejt the Republic of China, the objective of
which is the expression of an opinion regarding timancial statements taken as a whole.
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any mataodifications that should be made to the
financial statements referred to above for thetbetan conformity with the Guidelines Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securitissuers, requirements of the Business
Accounting Law and Guidelines Governing Businesscodmting with respect to financial
accounting standards, and accounting principlesrgdlg accepted in the Republic of China.

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statememtffective January 1, 2009, Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited adopted newly revised Statements of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 10, “Accountiftg Inventories.” In addition, effective

January 1, 2008, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufactu@ogpany Limited adopted Interpretation
2007-052, “Accounting for Bonuses to Employees,eBiors and Supervisors,” issued by the
Accounting Research and Development Foundationhef Republic of China and relevant
requirements promulgated by the Financial Superyi€@mmission of the Executive Yuan.



We have also reviewed, in accordance with StatenoentAuditing Standards No. 36, the
consolidated financial statements of Taiwan Sendootor Manufacturing Company Limited and
subsidiaries as of and for the nine months endgde8#er 30, 2009 and 2008, and have issued
thereon an unqualified review report with an exptarny paragraph relating to the adoption of the
newly revised Statement of Financial Accountingn8tad, Accounting for Inventories, and the
adoption of Interpretation 2007-052, respectively.

October 9, 2009

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are interadg to present the financial position, results

of operations and cash flows in accordance withoacating principles and practices generally

accepted in the Republic of China and not thoseamyf other jurisdictions. The standards,

procedures and practices to review such financiatesnents are those generally accepted and
applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the accountantgiere report and the accompanying financial

statements have been translated into English floerotiginal Chinese version prepared and used
in the Republic of China. If there is any confligitween the English version and the original
Chinese version or any difference in the interpiietaof the two versions, the Chinese-language
accountants’ review report and financial statemesttall prevail.



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

BALANCE SHEETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 AND 2008

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Par Vaie)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

200¢ 200¢
ASSETS Amount % Amount %
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 4) $ 160228 20 $ 71,356,901 13
Financial assets at fair value through profit @sl¢Notes 2, 5 and 23) 367,461 - 12,970 -
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 2, 6 28j - - 16,936,633 3
Held-to-maturity financial assets (Notes 2, 7 and 8,374,38! 2 5,063,09 1
Receivables from related parties (Note 24) 2 3167 4 27,255,916 5
Notes and accounts receivable 20,825,053 4 22,662,860 4
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Ns 2 and ¢) (436,00() - (686,14%) -
Allowance for sales returns and others (Is 2 and ¢) (8,874,19') 2) (5,339,46') 1)
Other receivables from related parties (Note 24) 321,499 - 315,293 -
Other financial assets (Note 25) 903,842 - 564,972 -
Inventories (Notes, 3and9) 17,194,18 3 19,429,55 4
Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 17) 7428 1 2,915,006 1
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 835 - 1,208,644 -
Total current assets 168,327,942 32 161,696,230 30
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (Notes 2, 6, 7, 10, 11 and 23
Investments accounted for using equity method 5,085,064 20 109,129,339 21
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,033,473 - 4,003,970 1
Held-to-maturity financial assets 13,278,683 3 11,416,050 2
Financial assets carried at ¢ 501,56 - 748,26! -
Total long-term investments 119,898,783 23 125,297,622 24
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 12 and24)
Cost
Buildings 123,783,09 24 113,146254 21
Machinery and equipme 674,274,13 12¢ 632,130,63 11¢
Office equipment 10,337,123 2 9,597,292 2
808,394,284 155 754,874,178 142
Accumulated depreciatit (610,117,83) (117) (538,829,63) (101)
Advance payments and construction in progress 3208302 4 10,960,925 2
Net property, plant and equipment 216,596,748 42 227,005,465 43
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill (Note 2, 1,567,75 - 1,567,75 -
Deferredcharges, net (Notesand 1) 5,453,68! 1 6,466,92 1
Totalintangible asse 7,021,43 1 8,034,68! 1
OTHER ASSETS
Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 17) 36300 1 7,504,585 1
Refundable depos 2,754,26 1 2,666,67 1
Others (Note - 487,38 - 57,11: -
Total other assets 10,215,454 2 10,228,372 2
TOTAL $ 522,060,363 100 $ 532,262,374 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofila@cial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche review report dated OctoBe2009)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss (Notes 2, 5 and 23)
Accounts payable
Payables to related parties (Note 24)
Income tax payable (Notes 2 and
Bonuses payable to employees and directors (Nlpt@snd 19)
Payables to contractors and equipment suppliers
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities €15)
Current portion of bonds payable (N14)

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds payable (Note 14)
Other long-term payables (Note 15)

Total long-term liabilities

OTHER LIABILITIES
Accrued pension cost (Notes 2 and 16)
Guarantee deposits (Note 27)
Deferred credits (Notes 2 a24)

Total other liabilities

Total liabilities

CAPITAL STOCK- NT$10 PAR VALUE (Notes 19 and 2
Authorized  28,050,00 thousand shar
Issuec 25,900,662thousand shares in 29
25,904,16 thousand shares in 28

CAPITAL SURPLUS (Notes 2 and 19)

RETAINED EARNINGS (Note 19)
Appropriated as legal capital reserve
Appropriated as special capital reserve
Unappropriated earnings

OTHERS (Notes 2, 21 and 23)
Cumulative translation adjustments
Unrealizecgain/los: onfinancial instrumen
Treasur stock 278,875thousand shar

Total shareholders’ equity

TOTAL

200¢ 200¢
Amount % Amount %
$ - - 314,630 -
8,297,913 1 6,948,805 1
2,294,155 - 2,573,875 1
5,726,65! 1 9,071,041 2
8,618,411 2 13,265,568 3
15,520,005 3 7,390,905 1
8,675,19€ 2 11,153,92 2
- - 8,000,001 1
49,132,336 9 58,718,749 11
4,500,000 1 4,500,000 1
579,600 - 1,071,214 -
5,079,600 1 5,671,214 1
3,786,616 1 3,695,766 1
1,104,704 - 1,618,686 -
71.80¢ - 582,20t -
4,963,129 1 5,896,658 1
59,175,065 11 70,186,62: 12
259,006,63 50 259,041,66 48
55,439,919 10 50,463,438 9
77,310 15 67,324,393 13
- - 391,857 -
71,898,923 14 103,062,463 19
149,216,633 29 170,778,713 32
(1,272,298) - (1,584,029) -
494,421 - (124,03¢) -
- - (16.499.99) 3)
(777,879 - (18,208,058 (3)
462,885,298 89 462,075,753 87
$ 522,060,363 100 $ 532,262,374 100



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 AND 2®@8
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

GROSS SALES (Notes 2 ai24)

SALES RETURNS AND ALLOWANCES (Nois 2 and ¢

NET SALES
COST OF SALES (Note3, 9,18 and24)
GROSS PROFI

UNREALIZED GROSS PROFIT FROM AFFILIATE
(Note 2)

REALIZED GROSS PROFI

OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes8 and24)
Research and developm
General and administrati
Marketing

Total operating expens
INCOME FROM OPERATION:

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND GAIN¢

Interes income Note 2)

Valuation gain on financial instruments, net (Nd2e$§
and 23)

Settlemer income(Note 27

Technical service income (Not24 and :7)

Gain on settlement and disposal of financial assets
(Notes 2 and 23)

Equity in earnings cequity metho investee, ne
(Notes 2 and 10)

Foreign exchanggair, net (Note Z

Otheis (Notes 2 ani 24)

Total nor-operating income and ga

2009 20(8
Amount % Amount %

$ 206,462,25 $ 266,527,65

9,715,73 5,586,78:
196,746,52  10C 26(,940,87. 10C
11351€,51¢ 58 142,456,95. 55
83.23(C,00- 42 11€,483,92! 45
128,152 - 164,705 -
83.101,85:3 42 11€,319,21! 45
13.68€,108 7 15,359,63 5
7.,24€,047 3 7,829,75: 3
1,427.04 1 1,84k 95¢ 1
22.35€,19¢ 11 25,035,34: 9
60,742,657 31 93,283.,87: 36
938,36 1 2,084,51¢ 1
576,910 - - -
494,071 - 45€,19¢ -
279,64 - 521,36¢ -
53,364 - 396,865 -
- 1,306,897 1
- - 14€,19¢ -
355,79: - 651,71¢ -
2,698,15! 1 5,563,75- 2

(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 AND 2®8
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

2009 208
Amount % Amount %
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSSE
Equity in losses of equity method investees, netékl:
and 10) $ 2,772,157 1 9% - -
Foreign exchange loss, net (N 2) 611,09¢ - - -
Interesiexpens 108,27t - 26€,25( -
Valuation loss on financial instruments, net (N&g$
and 23) - - 299,565 -
Loss on idle assets (Note - - 210,47 -
Provision for litigation liss - - 99,12¢ -
Othess (Note 2 102,55: - 89,36¢ -
Total nor-operating expenses and los 3,5¢4,084 1 964,78 -
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TA) 50,84€,72% 31 97,882,84: 38
INCOME TAX EXPENSE(Notes 2 and 7) 3,294,93 2 1C,395,44! 4
NET INCOME $ 56,551,787 28 $ 87,487,39 34
2009 208
Before After Before After
Income Income Income Income
Tax Tax Tax Tax
EARNINGS PER SHARE (NT$, Noi22)
Basic earnings per shi 2.2 2.1¢ 3.7¢ § 3.3t
Diluted earnings per sh: 2.20 218 $ 3.7z $ 3.3

Certain pro forma information (after income tax)skown as follows, based on the assumption that the
Company’s stock held by subsidiaries is treatedvaslable-for-sale financial assets instead ofswea stock
for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 (Notewl 21):

2008
NET INCOME $ 87,589,67
EARNINGS PER SHRE (NT$
Basic earnings per shi 3.35
Diluted earnings per shg 3.33
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements.
(With Deloitte & Touche review report dated OctoBef009) (Concluded)
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 AND 2®8
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

2009 20(8

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIE

Net incom: $ 56,551,787 $ 87,487,39.
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigenl by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizati 55,547,95 55,280,08
Unrealized gross profit from affiliat 12€,152 164,70!
Amortization ofpremiumdiscountof financial asse (6,24¢) (75,117)
Gain on disposal of availal-for-sale financial assets, | (37,37() (397,53
Gain on hel-to-maturity financial assets redeemed by the it (16,09:) -
Loss on disposal ofinancial assets carried at ¢ 97 67C
Equity in losses (earnings) of equity method ineest ne 2,772,157 (1,306,89)
Dividends received from equity method inves 1,402,59: 1,804,35.
Gair on disposal of property, plant and ¢pmentand other assetne! (77,173) (236,26!)
Loss on idle asse - 210,47
Deferred income te (1,112,16)) 2,090,344
Changes in operating assets and liabili
Decrease (increase)
Financial assets and liabilitiet fair value through profit or lo (408,€19) 96,09°
Receivables from related part (10,736,60) (554,26%)
Notesand iccounts receivab (9,383,87) (4,751,53))
Allowance for doubtful receivabl (74¢) (2,82¢)
Allowance for sales returns and otr 3,005,61 1,482,78
Other receivables from related par 160,15: 218,10t
Other financial asse (192,08") (233,27:)
Inventorie: (4,386,241) 1,557,59
Prepaid expenses and other currentts 578,85 (346,83.)
Increase (decrease)
Accounts payab 4,306,13 (2,537,01))
Payables to related pari 1,091,865 (425,75Y)
Income tax payab (3,496,15!) (1,917,91))
Bonuses payable to employees and dire 965,34 13,265,56
Accrued expenses and other current liabil 641,917 31,46¢
Accruedpension cosl 76,60" 38,08’
Deferred credit (206,55:) (71,80¢)
Net cash provided by operating activi 97,169,29 15C,870,67:
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIE!
Acquisitions of
Property, plant and equipm: (44,452,38) (45,995,93)
Available-for-sale financial asse - (21,697,00)
Held-to-maturity financial asse (9,405,40') (5,989,99)
Investments accounted for using equity me (262,92:) (380,564)
Financial assets carried at ¢ (98¢) (1,88¢)
(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 AND 2®8
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

2009 208
Proceeds from disposor redemptiorof:
Available-for-sale financial asse $ 1,037,370 $ 24,638,22
Held-to-maturity financial asets 5,418,00! 9,773,001
Financial assets carried at ¢ 18,82¢ 1,117
Property, plant and equipmi and othe asset 68,579 2,033,74!
Proceeds frometurn of capital by invests 20,20: 2,460,12;
Cash from merger of subsidiat - 27C,65(
Increase in deferred char: (438,301) (2,243,68)
Decreas (increase) in refundak deposit (34,559) 74,862
Net cash used in investing activif (48,031,58) (37,057,35Y)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACIVITIES
Repayment of bonds paya (8,000,001) -
Decreastin guarantee depos (374,440 (621,99:)
Proceeds from exercise employeestock option 190,9% 222 55:
Cash dividenc (76,876,31) (76,881,31)
Cash bonusaid to employee - (3,939,88))
Bonus to director. - (176,89()
Repurchase of treasury st - (33,480,99)
Net cash used in financing activit (85,059,75) _ (114,878,52()
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (35,922,07) (1,065,20)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIO 138,208,36 72,422,10
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIC $ 102,286,28 $ 71,356,90
SUPPLEMENTALDISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOVINFORMATION
Interestpaic $ 351,80: $ 355,00t
Income tax pai $ 777019 $ 10,228,00
INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES AFFECTING BOTF
CASH AND NON-CASH ITEMS
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipm $ 52,075,000 $ 47,997,10
Increase in payabl to contractors and equipment supp! (7,622,62.) (2,001,16!)
Cash pai $ 4445238 $ 45,995,93
Disposal of property, plant and equipment and odéisset $ 60,468 $ 2,041,83
Decrease ncreas) in otherreceivable from relatec partie: 8,097 (8,097)
Cash receive $ 68,57 $ 2,033,74
(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 AND 2®8
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

2009 208
Repurchase of treasury st $ - $ 3042741
Decrease in accrued expenses and other currenitlid - 3,053,58.
Cash pai $ - $ 33,480,99
NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bonus to employees transferred to capital ¢ $ 749498 ¢ -
Current portion of bonds paya $ - $ 8,000,00
Current portion of other loi-term payabls (under accrued expenses
other current liabilities) 3$ 775,567 $ 1,901,323
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements.
(With Deloitte & Touche review report dated OctoBef009) (Concluded)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 AND 2®8
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

1. GENERAL

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limifglde “Company” or “TSMC”), a Republic of
China (R.O.C.) corporation, was incorporated onrkraty 21, 1987. The Company is a dedicated foundry
in the semiconductor industry which engaged maimlthe manufacturing, selling, packaging, testing a
computer-aided designing of integrated circuits atiger semiconductor devices and the manufactwing
masks. On September 5, 1994, its shares werd listehe Taiwan Stock Exchange (TSE). On October
8, 1997, TSMC listed some of its shares of stockhenNew York Stock Exchange (NYSE) in the form of
American Depositary Shares (ADSS).

As of September 30, 2009 and 2008, the CompanRb&®b6 and 20,702 employees, respectively.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are presented in confgrmith the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, Businessonting Law, Guidelines Governing Business
Accounting, and accounting principles generallyegted in the R.O.C.

For the convenience of readers, the accompanyiagdial statements have been translated into &ngli
from the original Chinese version prepared and usetie R.O.C. If there is any conflict betweer th
English version and the original Chinese versioaroy difference in the interpretation of the twaosiens,
the Chinese-language financial statements shalbpre

Significant accounting policies are summarizeéodews:

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftynwith the aforementioned guidelines, law and
principles requires management to make reasonablargtions and estimates of matters that are inthgre
uncertain. The actual results may differ from nggamaent’s estimates.

Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets ad Liabilities

Current assets are assets held for trading puwspaise assets expected to be converted to cashpsold
consumed within one year from the balance sheet. da€urrent liabilities are obligations incurred fo
trading purposes and obligations expected to hkedetithin one year from the balance sheet dafessets
and liabilities that are not classified as curet noncurrent assets and liabilities, respectively

Cash Equivalents

Repurchase agreements collateralized by governimemils acquired with maturities of less than three

months from the date of purchase are classifiedagh equivalents. The carrying amount approximates
fair value.



Financial Assets/Liabilities at Fair Value ThroughProfit or Loss

Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for heedgcounting are initially recognized at fair valuéth
transaction costs expensed as incurred. The dedgaare remeasured at fair value subsequently wit
changes in fair value recognized in earnings. @Quia way purchase or sale of financial assets is
accounted for using settlement date accounting.

Fair value is estimated using valuation technigireorporating estimates and assumptions that are
consistent with prevailing market conditions. WHhka fair value is positive, the derivative is rgoized
as a financial asset; when the fair value is negathe derivative is recognized as a financidliliiy.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are initialcognized at fair value plus transaction costsahadirectly
attributable to the acquisition. Changes in fafue from subsequent remeasurement are reported as
separate component of shareholders’ equity. Theegponding accumulated gains or losses are
recognized in earnings when the financial asseferecognized from the balance sheet. A regular way
purchase or sale of financial assets is accounteagsing settlement date accounting.

The fair value of structured time deposits isreated using valuation techniques. Fair value @&negnd
mutual funds is determined using the net assetseval the end of the period. For debt securifass,
value is determined using the average of bid akeddaprices at the end of the period.

Any difference between the initial carrying amowfta debt security and the amount due at matisity
amortized using the effective interest method, wWithamortization recognized in earnings.

If there is objective evidence which indicated théinancial asset is impaired, a loss is recagpiz If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairmerd becreases, for equity securities, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed to the éxtérihe decrease and recorded as an adjustment to
shareholders’ equity; for debt securities, the amat the decrease is recognized in earnings, geavthat

the decrease is clearly attributable to an evemtiwbccurred after the impairment loss was recaghiz

Held-to-maturity Financial Assets

Debt securities for which the Company has a pasiiivtention and ability to hold to maturity are
categorized as held-to-maturity financial assetsane carried at amortized cost under the effedtitarest
method except for structured time deposits whiehcairried at acquisition cost. Those financiabtsare
initially recognized at fair value plus transactioosts that are directly attributable to the adtjars
Gains or losses are recognized at the time of dgréion, impairment or amortization. A regularywa
purchase or sale of financial assets is accountedgsing settlement date accounting.

If there is objective evidence which indicated théinancial asset is impaired, a loss is recagpiz If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairmestdesreases and the decrease is clearly attributabin
event which occurred after the impairment loss veasgnized, the previously recognized impairmess lo
is reversed to the extent of the decrease. Thersalvmay not result in a carrying amount that eadsdahe
amortized cost that would have been determinefirasimpairment loss had been recognized.

Allowance for Doubtful Receivables
An allowance for doubtful receivables is providealsed on a review of the collectibility of notesddan
accounts receivable. The Company determines tloau@imof the allowance for doubtful receivables by

examining the aging analysis of outstanding notes accounts receivable and current trends in teditcr
quality of its customers as well as its internaidit policies.

-10 -



Revenue Recognition and Allowance for Sales Retusrand Others

The Company recognizes revenue when evidence afrangement exists, the rewards of ownership and
significant risk of the goods has been transfe@dhe buyer, price is fixed or determinable, and
collectibility is reasonably assured. Provisions éstimated sales returns and others are recandex
period the related revenue is recognized, basdustorical experience, management’s judgment, aiyd a
known factors that would significantly affect tHoaance.

Sales prices are determined using fair value tpkito account related sales discounts agreed tthéy
Company and its customers. Sales agreements lygicavide that payment is due 30 days from ineoic
date for a majority of the customers and 30 to dgsdafter the end of the month in which sales oémur
some customers. Since the receivables from sedesodectible within one year and such transactiare
frequent, fair value of the receivables is equintte the nominal amount of the cash to be received

Inventories

Inventories are recorded at standard cost andi@djuo approximate weighted-average cost on tlemta
sheet date.

Prior to January 1, 2009, inventories were statdtle lower of cost or market value. Any writeatlowas
made on a total-inventory basis. Market value espnted replacement cost for raw materials, sigplie
and spare parts and net realizable value for woptdcess and finished goods.

As stated in note 3, effective January 1, 200@emtories are stated at the lower of cost or nalizable
value. Inventory write-downs are made on an itgnitdm basis, except where it may be appropriate to
group similar or related items. Net realizableugals the estimated selling price of inventoriesslall
estimated costs of completion and necessary s&lbats.

Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method

Investments in companies wherein the Company msecsignificant influence over the operating and
financial policy decisions are accounted for usihg equity method. The Company’s share of the net
income or net loss of an investee is recognizatién‘equity in earnings/losses of equity methodestees,
net” account. The cost of an investment shallisdyaed and the cost of investment in excess ofdine
value of identifiable net assets acquired, reprasgigoodwill, shall not be amortized. If the famlue of
identifiable net assets acquired exceeds the ¢dsvestment, the excess shall be proportionatibeated

as reductions to fair values of non-current asg¢exgept for financial assets other than investments
accounted for using the equity method and deféneaine tax assets). When an indication of impaitme
is identified, the carrying amount of the investisreduced, with the related impairment loss geized

in earnings.

When the Company subscribes for additional inestshares at a percentage different from its iegist
ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amadirthe investment in the investee differs from the
amount of the Company’s share of the investee'styequThe Company records such a difference as an
adjustment to long-term investments with the cqroesling amount charged or credited to capital sstpl
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Gains or losses on sales from the Company to yequethod investees are deferred in proportion & th
Company’s ownership percentages in the invested¢#$ such gains or losses are realized through
transactions with third parties. The entire amaninthe gains or losses on sales to investeeswhigh
the Company has a controlling interest is defemstil such gains or losses are realized througlsesmyloent
sales of the related products to third parties. in&ar losses on sales from equity method invedtedse
Company are deferred in proportion to the Compaawsership percentages in the investees until dney
realized through transactions with third partie&ains or losses on sales between equity methodtes®
over each of which the Company has control arerdefan proportion to the Company’s weighted-averag
ownership percentage in the investee which reagadss or losses. In transactions between equitiiade
investees over either or both of which the Complaay no control, gains or losses on sales are ddfarr
proportion to the multiplication of the Company’eighted-average ownership percentages in the msgst
Such gains or losses are recorded until they atized through transactions with third parties.

If an investee’s functional currency is a foremmrency, differences will result from the tranglatof the
investee’s financial statements into the reportogency of the Company. Such differences aregguar
or credited to cumulative translation adjustmeatseparate component of shareholders’ equity.

Financial Assets Carried at Cost

Investments for which the Company does not exersignificant influence and that do not have a edot
market price in an active market and whose faiuealannot be reliably measured, such as non-pybilicl
traded stocks and mutual funds, are carried at trigjinal cost. The costs of non-publicly tradsdcks
and mutual funds are determined using the weigatedage method. If there is objective evidenceckvhi
indicates that a financial asset is impaired, a Issecognized. A subsequent reversal of suclimment
loss is not allowed.

Cash dividends are recognized as investment inagroa resolution of shareholders of an investeealrit
accounted for as a reduction to the original costwestment if such dividends are declared oneidimings

of the investee attributable to the period priorthie purchase of the investment. Stock dividernds a
recorded as an increase in the number of shardsanel do not affect investment income. The cost pe
share is recalculated based on the new total nuoilstrares.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Assets Leased to @ers and Idle Assets

Property, plant and equipment and assets leasethéos are stated at cost less accumulated depoeci
When an indication of impairment is identified, aeycess of the carrying amount of an asset over its
recoverable amount is recognized as a loss. Ifdb@verable amount increases in a subsequentpéri®
amount previously recognized as impairment woulddwersed and recognized as a gain. However, the
adjusted amount may not exceed the carrying anmtbanivould have been determined, net of depreciatio
as if no impairment loss had been recognized. ifgignt additions, renewals and betterments in@lrre
during the construction period are capitalized. ifaance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-linethmnd over the following estimated service lives:
buildings - 10 to 20 years; machinery and equipményears; and office equipment - 3 to 5 years.

Upon sale or disposal of property, plant and egeipt and assets leased to others, the relatecandst
accumulated depreciation are deducted from theegponding accounts, with any gain or loss recoeted
non-operating gains or losses in the period of satiisposal.

When property, plant and equipment are determiaduk idle or useless, they are transferred toddeets

at the lower of the net realizable value or cagyamount. Depreciation on the idle assets is deali
continuously, and the idle assets are tested fpaiment on a periodical basis.
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Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideragigid for acquisition over the fair value of idéable

net assets acquired. Goodwill is no longer amedtiand instead is tested for impairment annualliyan
event occurs or circumstances change which indibattethe fair value of goodwill is more likely thaot
below its carrying amount, an impairment loss ognized. A subsequent reversal of such impairment
loss is not allowed.

Deferred charges consist of technology license, fegftware and system design costs and other charge
The amounts are amortized over the following pexiodTechnology license fees - the shorter of the
estimated life of the technology or the term of thehnology transfer contract; software and sysiesign
costs and other charges - 3 years. When an iiahicaf impairment is identified, any excess of the
carrying amount of an asset over its recoverableusitnis recognized as a loss.  If the recoveraimieust
increases in a subsequent period, the previousipgrezed impairment loss would be reversed and
recognized as a gain. However, the adjusted anmmawmtnot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of amortization, as if no inpant loss had been recognized.

Expenditures related to research activities anddhrelated to development activities that do neétnthe
criteria for capitalization are charged to expengken incurred.

Pension Costs

For employees who participate in defined contidoupension plans, pension costs are recorded ased
the actual contributions made to employees’ indigldoension accounts during their service period=or
employees who participate in defined benefit pangilans, pension costs are recorded based on iattuar
calculations.

Income Tax

The Company applies an inter-period allocationittoincome tax whereby deferred income tax asaeds
liabilities are recognized for the tax effects emporary differences and unused tax credits. Vialna
allowances are provided to the extent, if any, thit more likely than not that deferred incomg &ssets
will not be realized. A deferred tax asset oriligbis classified as current or noncurrent in actance
with the classification of its related asset obility. However, if a deferred tax asset or li#lyildoes not
relate to an asset or liability in the financiatsments, then it is classified as either currenmiamcurrent
based on the expected length of time before gatized or settled.

Any tax credits arising from purchases of machineguipment and technology, research and developme
expenditures, personnel training expenditures, iamelstments in important technology-based entezpris
are recognized using the flow-through method.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities areded to or deducted from the current period’s tavision.

Income tax on unappropriated earnings at a rate086 is expensed in the year of shareholder approva
which is the year subsequent to the year the egsrare generated.

Stock-based Compensation

Employee stock options that were granted or medlifh the period from January 1, 2004 to December 3
2007 are accounted for by the interpretations thshig the Accounting Research and Development
Foundation of the Republic of China. The Companppted the intrinsic value method and any
compensation cost determined using this methoekcisgnized in earnings over the employee vestingger
Employee stock option plans that were granted odifieal after December 31, 2007 are accounted for
using fair value method in accordance with Statémen Financial Accounting Standards No. 39,
“Accounting for Share-based Payment.” The Compdity not grant or modify any employee stock
options since January 1, 2008.
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Bonuses to Employees and Directors

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adoptedrgregation 2007-052, “Accounting for Bonuses to
Employees, Directors and Supervisors,” which rezgigompanies to record bonuses paid to employekes an
directors as an expense rather than as an approprid earnings.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is stated at cost and shown aglactien in shareholders’ equity. When the Company
retires treasury stock, the treasury stock accaumntduced and the common stock as well as theatapi
surplus - additional paid-in capital are reversadagro rata basis. When the book value of thestney
stock exceeds the sum of the par value and additjpaid-in capital, the difference is charged tpitd
surplus - treasury stock transactions and to reth@arnings for any remaining amount.

The Company’s stock held by its subsidiariesasated as treasury stock and reclassified from tmersts
accounted for using equity method to treasury stodke gains resulted from disposal of the treastogk
held by subsidiaries and cash dividends receivedubsidiaries from the Company are recorded under
capital surplus - treasury stock transactions.

Foreign-currency Transactions

Foreign-currency transactions other than derieationtracts are recorded in New Taiwan dollarshat t
rates of exchange in effect when the transactioomuro Exchange gains or losses derived from
foreign-currency transactions or monetary assets |@bilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in earnings.

At the balance sheet date, monetary assets abilitigs denominated in foreign currencies are heed at
prevailing exchange rates with the resulting gainwsses recognized in earnings.

. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adoptednéwely revised SFAS No. 10, “Accounting for
Inventories.” The main revisions are (1) invergerare stated at the lower of cost or net reakzeablue,
and inventories are written down to net realizaldkie item-by-item except when the grouping of Emi
or related items is appropriate; (2) unallocatedrbgads are recognized as expenses in the perigitich
they are incurred; and (3) abnormal cost, writedt®wf inventories and any reversal of write-dowres a
recorded as cost of sales for the period. Sucinggsin accounting principle did not have significa
effect on the Company’s financial statements ferrime months ended September 30, 2009.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adoptedrpnétation 2007-052, “Accounting for Bonuses to
Employees, Directors and Supervisors,” issued imcM&007 by the ARDF, which requires companies to
record bonuses paid to employees, directors anehasprs as an expense rather than as an appropradt
earnings. The adoption of this interpretation lesuin a decrease in net income and earnings lpees
(after income tax and retroactively adjusted fa igsuance of stock dividend) of NT$11,055,454 skaod
and NT$0.42, respectively, for the nine months driéieptember 30, 2008.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adoptete@tent of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No.
39, “Accounting for Share-based Payment,” whichuiezs companies to record share-based payment
transactions in the financial statements at falueia Such a change in accounting principle did heote

any effect on the Company’s financial statementsfasd for the nine months ended September 3@8.200

-14 -



4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

September 3l

2009 200¢
Cash andeposits irbanks $ 91,703,36 $ 64,366,51
Repurchase agreeme collateralized by government bor 10,582,91 6,990,38:

$102,286,28 $ 71,356,90:

5. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

September 3

2009 200¢
Trading- financial asse
Forwardexchang contract $ - 3 12,97(
Cross currency swap contre 367,46: -

$ 367,4¢1 $ 12,97(

Trading- financial liabilities

Forward exchange contra $ - $ 136,05(
Cross currency swap contre - 178,58(

$ 0 - § 31463

The Company entered into derivative contractsndutine nine months ended September 30, 2009 ar&l 200
to manage exposures due to fluctuations of forekghange rates. The derivative contracts enterted i
by the Company did not meet the criteria for hedgeounting. Therefore, the Company did not apply
hedge accounting treatment for its derivative cuis.

As of September 30, 2009, no forward exchangeracist was outstanding. As of September 30, 2008,
outstanding forward exchange contracts consistékeofollowing:

Contract Amount

Maturity Date (in Thousands)
Sell EURbuy NT$ October 2008 EUR15,000/NT$691,465
Sell EURbuy US{ October 2008 EUR7,000/US$10,175
Sell US$buy NT$ October 2008 to December 2008 US$565,000/NT$18)064,

Outstanding cross currency swap contracts codsigtthe following:

Rangeaf Rangeof
Contract Amount Interest Rates  Interest Rates
Maturity Date (in Thousands) Paid Received

September 2, 200¢

Octoker 2009 tcDecembe 200¢ US$950,000/NT$30,935,5 0.30%-1.00% 0.00%-0.61%

September &, 200¢

October 2008 to November 2( US$536,000/NT$17,080,4 2.48%-14.00% 0.00%-2.40%
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 @D8, Zaluation on financial instruments arisingniro
derivative financial instruments was a net gainNdf$576,910 thousand and a net loss of NT$299,565
thousand, respectively.

. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

September 3l

2009 200¢
Corporat bond: $ 1,03347 $ 2,790,33
Oper-end mutual func - 14,146,29
Structured time depos - 4,003,97
1,033,47: 2(,940,60:
Current portio - (16,936,63.)

$ 1,033,47 $ 4,003,97

Structured time deposits categorized as availflteale financial assets consisted of the follawin

Principal Carrying

Amount Amount Interest Rate  Maturity Date
September &, 20(8
Callable deposi
Domestic deposi 4,000,000 $ 4,003,971 2.71%-2.80% Septembe 2011

The interest rate of the callable deposits wasdptermined by the Company and the banks.

. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

September 3

2009 200¢
Corporate bonc $ 12,74890 $ 10,778,06
Structured time depos 6,000,001 3,500,00!
Government bont 2,904,171 2,200,741
21,653,07 16,479,14
Current portio (8,374,38') (5,063,091)

$ 13,278,68 $ 11,416,05(

Structured time deposits categorized as held-toantya financial assets consisted of the following:

Range of
Principal Interest Interest
Amount Receivable Rates Maturity Date

September 2, 2009

Callabledomestic deposi  $ 6,000,000 $ 3,40¢ 0.67%-0.95% Marct 2011 to Augut 2011

September &, 20(8

Callabledomestic deposi  $ 3,500,000 $ 12,28° 1.83%-2.90% Octobe 2008 to Septemb 2011
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8. ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES, SALES RETU RNS AND OTHERS
Movements of the allowance for doubtful receivablere as follows:

Nine Months Ended
September 3l

2009 200¢
Balance, beginning of peri $ 436,74t $  688,97.
Provisior 243,06: -
Write-off (243,80) (2.82¢)
Balance, end of peri $ 436,000 $ 686,14.

Movements of the allowance for sales returns dhdre were as follows:

Nine Months Ended
September 3

2009 200¢
Balance, beginning of peri $ 5,868,58 $ 3,856,68!
Provisior 9,715,73! 5,586,78
Write-off (6,710,11) (4,104,001)
Balance, end of peri $ 887419 $ 5,339,46!

9. INVENTORIES

September 3l

2009 200¢
Finished gooc $ 2,01352 $ 4,054,38
Work in proces 13,654,96 13966,64:
Raw material 907,65! 863,37¢
Supplies and spare p¢ 618,04. 545,14«

$ 17,194.18 §$ 19,429,55
Write-down of inventories to net realizable valnghe amount of NT$313,175 thousand and NT$448,520

thousand, respectively, were included in the cbsates for sales for the nine months ended SepeB)
2009 and 2008.
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10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD

September 3l

2009 208
% of % of
Carrying Owner-  Carrying  Owner-
Amount ship Amount ship
TSMC Global Ltd. (TSMC Globe $ 45,42,79C 10C $ 44,368,84 10C
TSMC Partners, Ltd. (TSMC Partne 32,627,78¢ 10C 3,667,05 10C
Vanguard International Semiconductor Corpore
(VIS) 9,410,696 37 10,151,846 37
Systems on Silicon Manufacturing Company Pte |
(SSMC) 5,899,305 39 6,761,630 39
TSMC ChinaCompany Limited (TSM' China 3,606,01 10C 7,308,09: 10C
TSMC North Americ 2,6£6,75¢ 10C 2,390,71. 10C
Xintec Inc. (Xintec 1,372,69 41 1,445,51; 42
VentureTech Alliance Fundl, L.P. (VTAF Ill) 1,341,39 98 1,208,58 98
VentureTech Alliance Fund I, L.P. (VTAF 1,059,82 98 1,016,235 98
Global UnChip Corporation (GUC 960,442 36 891,78 36
Emerging Alliance Fund, L.P. (Emerging Allian 319,57: 99 418,70¢ 9¢
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Compe
Europe B.V. (TSMC Europe) 152,965 100 116,122 100
TSMC Japan Limited (TSMC Japi 136,71(  10C 116,48  10C
TSMC Korea Limited (TSMC Kore 18,11  10C 14,94  10C
TSMC International Investment Ltd. (TSM
International) - - 29,252,586 100
$105,(85,064 $109,129,33

TSMC Partners and TSMC International were both%08wned subsidiaries of the Company. To
simplify the organization structure of investmerBMC Partners merged TSMC International in June€9200

Chi Cherng and Hsin Ruey, both 100% owned subgédiaof the Company, were engaged in investing
activities. To simplify the organization structuoé investment, the Company merged Chi Cherng and
Hsin Ruey in the third quarter of 2008.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 @08, 2quity in earnings/losses of equity method
investees was a net loss of NT$2,772,157 thousatidanet gain of NT$1,306,897 thousand, respegtivel
Related equity in earnings/losses of equity methoastees were determined based on the reviewed
financial statements, except those of EmergingaAtie, TSMC Japan, TSMC Europe and TSMC Korea for
the nine months ended September 30, 2009. The &uonipelieves that, had Emerging Alliance, TSMC
Japan, TSMC Europe and TSMC Korea's financial statds been reviewed, any adjustments arising
would have had no material effect on the Compafiyancial statements.

As of September 30, 2009 and 2008, fair valueudiliply traded stocks in investments accountedufing
equity method (VIS and GUC) was NT$15,891,684 thodsand NT$15,446,393 thousand, respectively.
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11.

12.

Movements of the difference between the cost wéstments and the Company’s share in investees’ net

assets allocated to depreciable assets were aw$oll

Nine Months Ended
September 3l

2009 200¢
Balance, beginning of period $ 2,053,253 $ 2,677,388
Amortization (468,100 (468,100
Balance, end of period $ 1585152 $ 2,209,287

Movements of the aforementioned difference alledab goodwill were as follows:

Nine Months Ended
September 3l

209 200¢
Balance, beginning of period $ 1,061,885 $ 987,349
From merger of subsidiaries - 74,536
Balance, end of period $ 1061885 % 1,061,885
FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST

September 3l

209 200¢
Nonr-publicly traded stoc} $ 33858 $ 364,91
Mutual Fund 162,97¢ 383,35!(

$ 501,56 $ 74€,26<

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Nine Months Ended September 30, 20!

Balance,
Beginning of Balance,
Period Additions Disposals  Reclassification End of Period
Cost
Buildings $ 114,014,588% 9,778,198 $ (9,823)% 66 $ 123,783,029
Machinery and equipment 635,008,261 40,995,876 (1,732,570) 2,565 674,274,132
Office equipment 9,748,869 738,667 (150,34% (66) 10,337,123
758,771,718% 51,512,741 $ (1,892,740 $ 2,565 808,394,284
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings 65,351,514 % 6,067,051 $ (9,823)% 66 71,408,808
Machinery and equipment 484,046,160 47,404,997 (1,129,563) 2,565 530,324,159
Office equipment 7,849,580 685,519 (150,169 (66) 8,384,871
557,247,254 $ 54,157,567 $ (1,289,548 $ 2,565 610,117,838
Advance payments and construction
in progress 17,758,03% 562,264 $ - $ - 18,320,302
$ 219,282,502 $ 216,596,748
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13.

14.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 20(

Balance,
Beginning of Additions Balance,
Period (Deductions) Disposals  Reclassification End of Period
Cost
Buildings $ 101,907,892$ 11,247,197 $ (8,524)% (311)$ 113,146,254
Machinery and equipment 589,131,625 46,276,182 (3,143,000) (134,175) 632,130,632
Office equipment 9,167,107 595,749 (165,629 57 9,597,292

700,206,624 $ 58,119,128$% (3,317,145 $ (134,429 754,874,178

Accumulated depreciation

Buildings 57,349,828% 5,901,060 $ (8,524)% 4) 63,242,360
Machinery and equipment 422,278,071 46,820,532 (1,025,129) (119,347) 467,954,127
Office equipment 7,097,120 701,627 (165,629 26 7,633,151

486,725,0198% 53423219% (1,199,275 $ (119,325 538,829,638

Advance payments and construction

in progress 21,082,953 (10,122,028 $ - $ - 10,960,925
$ 234,564,558 $ 227,005,465

No interest was capitalized during the nine mowetided September 30, 2009 and 2008.

DEFERRED CHARGES, NET

Nine Months Ended Septembe®.32009

Balance,
Beginning of Balance,
Period Additions  Amortization Disposals Reclassificatior End of Period
Technology license fees $ 3,786,254 - $ (614,959)% - % -$ 3,171,292
Software and system design costs 1,559,857 438,308 (569,672) - - 1,428,493
Patent and others 1,055,353 - (201,458 - - 853,895
$ 6401,461$ 438,308 $ (1,386,089 $ - $ -$ 5,453,680
Nine Months Ended Septembe®.32008
Balance,
Beginning of Balance,
Period Additions  Amortization Disposals Reclassificatior End of Period
Technology license fees $ 5,349,993 - $ (1,172,765)% - % -$ 4177172
Software and system design costs 1,309,272 670,031 (509,931) (14,279) 59 1,455,152
Patent and others 513,204 454,125 (132,729 - - 834,605
$ 7172413 $ 1,124,156 $ (1,815,420 $ (14,279 $ 59 $§ 6,466,929
BONDS PAYABLE
September 3
2009 200¢
Domestic unsecured bon
Issued in January 2002 and repayable in Janua§and 201
in two installments, 2.75% and 3.00% interestgile annually,
respectively $ 4,500,000 $ 12,500,000
Current portio - (8,000,001)

$ 450000 $ 4,500,00
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15.

16.

OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES

Most of the Company’s long-term payables resultdfdm license agreements for certain
semiconductor-related patents. As of Septembef309, future payments for other long-term payables
were as follows:

Year of Payment Amount
2009 (4th quartel $  442,61¢
2C10 495,94¢
2011 418,60(
1,355,16

Current portionclassifiedunder accrued expenses and other current liab) (775,56)

$ 579,60(
PENSION PLANS

The pension mechanism under the Labor PensiorisAd¢emed a defined contribution plan. Pursuant to
the Act, the Company has made monthly contributemsal to 6% of each employee’s monthly salary to
employees’ pension accounts and recognized perwets of NT$441,429 thousand and NT$495,468
thousand for the nine months ended September 89, 2d 2008, respectively.

The Company has a defined benefit plan under #imit Standards Law that provides benefits basezhon
employee’s length of service and average montHargor the six-month period prior to retirementThe
Company contributes an amount equal to 2% of sslgraid each month to a pension fund (the Fund),
which is administered by the Labor Pension FundeBugory Committee (the Committee) and deposited in
the Committee’s name in the Bank of Taiwan. Then@any recognized pension costs of NT$216,482
thousand and NT$201,741 thousand for the nine rsamtded September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Movements of the Fund and accrued pension costrutied defined benefit plan were summarized as
follows:

Nine Months Endec
September 3l

2009 200¢

The Funi

Balance, beginning of peri $ 2,389,51' $ 2,145,01L

Contribution: 143,54( 157,39

Interes 52,44t 71,23¢

Payment (37,80) (28,990)

Balance, end of peri $ 247,700 $ 2,344,64
Accrued pension cc

Balance, beginning of peri $ 3,710,000 $ 3,657,67

Accruals 76,60 38,08’

Balance, end of peri $ 3,786,611 $ 3,695,76!
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17. INCOME TAX

a. A reconciliation of income tax expense basediocome before income tax” at statutory rate and
income tax currently payable was as follows:

Nine Months Endec
September 3

2009 2008

Income tax expense based on “income biincome tax” at

statutory rate (25%) $ 14,961,671 $ 24,470,700
Tax effect of the following

Tax-exempt incom (6,67€,202) (7,412,66)

Temporary and permanent differer 2,854,79¢ 778,66.

Other: 69,17« 41,23t
Income tax credi usec (5,603,71)) (8,938,96')
Income ta currently payabl $ 560371 $ 8,938,96

b. Income ta expens consisted of the followin

Income ta currently payabl $ 5,603,710 $ 8,938,96
Income tax adjustments on prior ye (1,155,11)) (707,254
Other income tax adjustme (41501) 73,39¢
Net change in deferred income tax as

Investment tax credi (3,159,541) 3,227,92.

Temporary differenct 143,09 (326,90")

Valuation allowanc 1,90429¢ (810,67¢)
Income taxexpens $ 3,294,36 $ 10,395,44!

c. Net deferred income tax assets consisted dbtlmving:

September 3

2009 200¢
Current deferrecncome tax asse
Investment tax credi $ 3,442,000 $ 2,915,00¢
Temporary differenct 845,04( -

4,287,041 $ 2,915,00

Noncurrent deferred income tax as

Investment tax credi $ 13,329,76 $ 8,693,822
Temporary differenct 1,947,98. 1,470,21
Valuation allowanc (8,303,95) (2,659,45!)

$ 697380 $ 7,504,58!

In May 2009, the amendment of Article 5 of thedme Tax Law of the Republic of China announced
that the income tax rate of profit-seeking entegsiwill be reduced from 25% to 20%, and will be
effective starting in 2010. The Company recal@adaits deferred tax assets and liabilities in
accordance with the amended Article and adjusteddbulting difference as an income tax benefit and
expense.
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d. Integrated income tax information:

The balance of the imputation credit account aSaptember 30, 2009 and 2008 was NT$214,826
thousand and NT$1,602,560 thousand, respectively.

The estimated and actual creditable ratio fotribistion of earnings of 2008 and 2007 was 9.10% an
9.83%, respectively.

The imputation credit allocated to shareholderdased on its balance as of the date of dividend
distribution. The estimated creditable ratio ménammge when the actual distribution of imputation
credit is made.

e. All earnings generated prior to December 39718ave been appropriated.

f. As of September 30, 2009, investment tax csatbihsisted of the following:

Total Remaining
Creditable Creditable  Expiry
Law/Statute Item Amount Amount Year
Statute for Upgradir Purchase of machinery ar $ 500,000 $ 500,000 200¢
Industrie: equipmer 1,216,55 201C

4,592,61 2,892,37. 2011
3,142,499 3,142,45  201-
2,049,99. 2,049,99. 201:

$ 11,501,61 8,584,82!

Statute for Upgradir Research and developm $ 2,663,78 $ - 201C
Industrie: expenditure 2,687,81 2,687,810 2011
2,688201 2,68¢201 2012

2,580384 2,580384 201:

$ 10,62021C $ 7,95642¢

Statute for Upgradir Personnel trainir expenditure ~ $ 23,14¢ 3 - 201C
Industrie: 36,56¢ 36,56¢ 2011
27,03¢ 27,03¢ 2012

$ 86,75( $ 63,60
Statute for Upgradir Investments in importa $ 87,10: $ 87,10. 200¢
Industrie: technolog-based enterpris 79,80« 79,80¢ 201C

$ 166,90! $ 166,90!
g. The profits generated from the following prdgeare exempt from income tax for a five-year patrio

Tax-exemption Perioc

Construction of Fab 1- Module A 2006 to 201
Construction of Fab 1- Module B and expansion of Fab - Module A 2007 to 201
Construction of Fab4 - Module B and expansn of Fab 2 and othel 20(8to 2012

h. The tax authorities have examined income texme of the Company through 2006. All investment
tax credit adjustments assessed by the tax audsohiave been recognized accordingly.
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18. LABOR COST, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2009

Classified as
Classified as  Operating
Cost of Sales  Expenses Total
Labor cos
Salaryand bonu $ 11,010,069 $ 8,299,658 $ 19,309,727
Labor and health insurce 458,611 278,310 736,921
Pension 409,387 248,524 657,911
Meal 305,276 132,322 437,598
Welfare 107,465 67,310 174,775
Othels 79,471 14,697 94,168
$ 12,370,279 $ 9,040,821 $ 21,411,100
Depreciatiol $ 51,354934 $ 2,790,434 $ 54,145,368
Amortizatior $ 897,733 % 488,356 $ 1,386,089
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008
Classified as
Classified as  Operating
Cost of Sales  Expenses Total
Laborcos
Salaryand bonu $ 14,026,566 $ 10,006,675 $ 24,033,241
Labor and health insuranc 506,692 285,693 792,385
Pension 445,831 251,378 697,209
Meal 332,621 134,159 466,780
Welfare 141,981 83,180 225,161
Othels 140,675 11,378 152,053
$ 15,594,366 $ 10,772,463 $ 26,366,829
Depreciatiol $ 50,585,293 $ 2,825,532 $ 53,410,825
Amortizatior $ 1,332,761 % 482,659 $ 1,815,420

19. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

As of September 30, 2009, 1,097,513 thousand AdiSke Company were traded on the NYSE. The
number of common shares represented by the ADSs5W&5,565 thousand (one ADS represents five
common shares).

Capital surplus can only be used to offset a dafitder the Company Law. However, the capitapkig
generated from donations and the excess of thanssuprice over the par value of capital stockiuiog
the stock issued for new capital, mergers, coertionds and the surplus from treasury stock actions)
may be appropriated as stock dividends, whichiariéeld to a certain percentage of the Company’d-ai
capital. In addition, the capital surplus fromdeterm investments may not be used for any purpose.
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Capital surplus consisted of the following:

September 3l

2009 2008
Additional paic-in capita $ 23,408,71 $ 18,154,78
From merge 22,805,39 23,053,57
From convertible bon 8,893,109 8,989,97.
From lon¢-term investmen 332,574 265,05:
Donation: 55 55

$ 55,439,198 $ 50,463,43

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation providethwhen allocating the net profits for each fispaar,
the Company shall first offset its losses in presigears and then set aside the following itemerdaugly:

a. Legal capital reserve at 10% of the profits ¢efer, until the accumulated legal capital resesgaals
the Company’s paid-in capital;

b. Special capital reserve in accordance withveglelaws or regulations or as requested by theoaities
in charge;

c. Bonus to directors and bonus to employeeseoCibmpany of not more than 0.3% and not less tB&an 1
of the remainder, respectively. Directors who asove as executive officers of the Company are not
entitled to receive the bonus to directors. Then@any may issue stock bonuses to employees of an
affiliated company meeting the conditions set bg ®oard of Directors or, by the person duly
authorized by the Board of Directors;

d. Any balance left over shall be allocated acitwydo the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation also paevithat profits of the Company may be distributgd b
way of cash dividend and/or stock dividend. Howewdéstribution of profits shall be made preferably
way of cash dividend. Distribution of profits malso be made by way of stock dividend; provided tha
the ratio for stock dividend shall not exceed 5(%he total distribution.

Any appropriations of the profits are subjecthargholders’ approval in the following year.

The Company has recorded bonuses to employeedisextors with an estimate based on historical
experience with a charge to earnings of approxiypai®% of net income. If the actual amounts
subsequently resolved by the shareholders diften fthe estimated amounts, the differences arededadn

the year of shareholders’ resolution as a changecgounting estimate. If stock bonuses are reddlvée
distributed to employees, the number of sharesierthined by dividing the amount of bonuses by the
closing price (after considering the effect of damds) of the shares on the day preceding thelstidess’
meeting.

The Company no longer has supervisors since Jardya2007. The required duties of supervisors are
being fulfilled by the Audit Committee.

The appropriation for legal capital reserve shallmade until the reserve equals the Company’sipaid
capital. The reserve may be used to offset a itlefic be distributed as dividends and bonusegter
portion in excess of 50% of the paid-in capitathé Company has no unappropriated earnings and the
reserve balance has exceeded 50% of the Compaaiglspcapital. The Company Law also prescribes
that, when the reserve has reached 50% of the Quoyigppaid-in capital, up to 50% of the reserve rhay
transferred to capital.
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A special capital reserve equivalent to the néitdelance of the other components of sharehdleersty
(for example, cumulative translation adjustments$ amrealized loss on financial instruments, buludiag
treasury stock) shall be made from unappropriasediegs pursuant to existing regulations promuigdjte
the Securities and Futures Bureau (SFB). Any speeserve appropriated may be reversed to thetexte
that the net debit balance reverses.

The appropriations of earnings for 2008 and 208 Ieen approved in the shareholders’ meetingsdmeld
June 10, 2009 and June 13, 2008, respectively. apfmeopriations and dividends per share were as
follows:

Dividends Per Share
Appropriation of Earnings (NT$)
For Fiscal For Fiscal For Fiscal For Fiscal
Year 2008 Year 2007  Year 2008Year 2007

Legal capital reserve $ 9,993,31% 10,917,709

Special capital reserve (391,857) (237,693)

Bonus to employees - in cash - 3,939,883

Bonus to employees - in stock - 3,939,883

Cash dividends to shareholders 76,876,31276,881,311 $3.00 $3.00
Stock dividends to shareholders 512,509 512,542 0.02 0.02
Bonus to directors - 176,890

$ 86,990,281 $ 96,130,525

Bonus to employees that have been paid in casinasidck as well as bonus to directors in the amwof
NT$7,494,988 thousand, NT$7,494,988 thousand an$i1Bd,080 thousand for 2008, respectively, had
been approved in the shareholders’ meeting heltbioe 10, 2009. The employee stock bonus of 141,870
thousand shares was determined by the closing pfittee Company’s common shares (after considering
the effect of dividends) of the day immediatelyqading the shareholders’ meeting, which was NT$52.8
The resolved amounts of the bonus to employeed@udrectors were consistent with the resolutiohs o
meeting of the Board of Directors held on Februk®y 2009 and same amount had been charged against
earnings of 2008.

The shareholders’ meeting held on June 10, 208® raisolved to distribute stock dividends out gditeh
surplus, and stock dividends to shareholders ak agebonuses to employees to be paid in stockén th
amount of NT$768,763 thousand, NT$512,509 thousamtlNT$7,494,988 thousand, respectively. The
aforementioned capital increase had taken effedubn21, 2009.

The information about appropriations of the botm&mployees and directors is available at the Btark
Observation Post System website.

Under the Integrated Income Tax System that becsffieetive on January 1, 1998, the R.O.C. resident

shareholders are allowed a tax credit for theipprbonate share of the income tax paid by the Gompn
earnings generated since January 1, 1998.
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20. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company’s Employee Stock Option Plans, cangisif the 2004 Plan, 2003 Plan and 2002 Plan, were
approved by the SFB on January 6, 2005, October2003 and June 25, 2002, respectively. The
maximum number of options authorized to be granteder the 2004 Plan, 2003 Plan and 2002 Plan was
11,000 thousand, 120,000 thousand and 100,000 ahdugespectively, with each option eligible to
subscribe for one common share when exercisablbe options may be granted to qualified employees of
the Company or any of its domestic or foreign sdibsies, in which the Company’s shareholding with
voting rights, directly or indirectly, is more théifty percent (50%). The options of all the plaare valid

for ten years and exercisable at certain percestagiesequent to the second anniversary of the dedet
Under the terms of the plans, the options are grhat an exercise price equal to the closing pfahe
Company’s common shares listed on the TSE on thet giate.

Options of the aforementioned plans that had néeen granted or had been granted but subsequently
canceled had expired as of September 30, 2009.

Information about outstanding options for the nimenths ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 was as
follows:

Weightec-
average
Number of Exercise
Options Price

(in Thousands  (NT$)
Nine months ended September 3009

Balance, beginning of peri 36,23¢ $34.C
Options grante 17E 34.C
Options exercise (5,22¢) 36.t
Options cancele (321) 46.5
Balance, end of peri 30,86( 33.t

Nine months endd September 30, 28

Balance, beginning of peri 41,87* $35.€
Options grante 767 35.2
Options exercise (5,880) 37.¢
Options cancele (302) 46.:
Balance, end of peri 36,46( 35.¢

The number of outstanding options and exerciseeprhave been adjusted to reflect the distribution
earnings in accordance with the plans. The optigrented were the result of the aforementioned
adjustment.

=27 -



As of September 30, 2009, information about ontditay options was as follows:

Options Outstandinc

Weightec- Weightec-

average average

Range of Number of Remaining Exercise
Exercise Options (in  Contractual Price
Price (NT$) Thousands  Life (Years) (NT$)
$22.6$32.( 22,685 3.41 $29.2
38.¢- 50.1 8,175 5.1¢ 45.5
30,860 335

As of September 30, 2009, all of the above outBtanoptions were exercisable.

No compensation cost was recognized under thénsitr value method for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 and 2008. Had the Companytheddir value based method to evaluate the options
using the Black-Scholes model, the assumptiongpamdorma results of the Company for the nine menth

21.

ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 would have lsdfeticaws:

Assumptions
Expected dividend yie
Expected volatilit
Risk free interest ra

Nine Months Endec
September 3l
2009 200¢

1.0(%-3.4%
43.71%-46.15%
3.07%-3.85%

1.00%-3.4%
43.71%-46.15%
3.07%-3.85%

Expected lifi 5year: 5year:
Net income

Net income as report $ 56,551,787 $ 87,487,39

Pro forma net incon 5617%,87¢ 87,482,61
Earnings per share (EP- after income tax (NT$

Basic EPS as report $2.1¢ $3.3¢

Pro forma basic EF 2.18 3.3t

Diluted EPS as report 2.18 3.33

Pro forma diluted EF 2.16 3.33

TREASURY STOCK

(Shares in Thousands)

Beginning Stock Ending
Shares  Addition Dividends Retirement Shares
Nine months ended September 30, 8
Parent comgny stock held by subsidiar 34,096 - 171 34,267 -
Repurchase under share buyback 800,000 495,549 - 1,016,674 278,875
834,096 495,549 171 1,050,941 278,875
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22.

As of September 30, 2008, the book value of teaswry stock was NT$16,499,990 thousand and the
market value was NT$14,640,938 thousand. The Coypaommon shares held by subsidiaries were
treated as treasury stock and the holders ardeehtit the rights of shareholders, with the exaaptf
voting rights.

The Company held a meeting of the Board of Dinecion November 13, 2007 and approved a share
buyback plan to repurchase the Company’s commoreshgp to 800,000 thousand shares listed on the TSE
during the period from November 14, 2007 to Janda&y2008 for the buyback price in the range from
NT$43.2 to NT$94.2. The Company had repurchase@ 080 thousand common shares. All the
treasury stock repurchased under this share buytlaokwvas retired in February 2008.

The Company held a meeting of the Board of Dinesctin May 13, 2008 and approved a share buyback
plan to repurchase the Company’s common shares 60,000 thousand shares listed on the TSE during
the period from May 14, 2008 to July 13, 2008 foe tbuyback price in the range from NT$48.25 to

NT$100.50. The Company had repurchased 216,674séimal common shares. All the treasury stock
repurchased under this share buyback plan wasdaetirAugust 2008.

The Company held a meeting of the Board of Dinsct;m August 12, 2008 and approved a share buyback
plan to repurchase the Company’s common shares 883,000 thousand shares listed on the TSE during
the period from August 13, 2008 to October 12, 2fad8he buyback price in the range from NT$42.85 t
NT$86.20. The Company had repurchased 278,875s#moucommon shares. All the treasury stock
repurchased under this share buyback plan wasdetirNovember 2008.

As discussed in Note 10, the Company merged Chkrrighand Hsin Ruey in the third quarter of 2008.
The Company’s common shares held by Chi CherngHsid Ruey in the number of 34,267 thousand
shares were retired in August 2008.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

EPS is computed as follows:

Number of EPS (NT$

Amounts (Numerator) Sheres Before  After
Before After (Denominator) Income Income
Income Tax Income Tax (in Thousands  Tax Tax
Nine month endedSeptember 2, 20(9
BasicEP<
Earning: available tccommonshareholde! $ 59,84¢723 $ 56,551,787 2581361 $ 2.2 2.19
Effect of diluive potential common share
Bonus to employe: - - 153,06¢
Stock option - - 14,45¢
Diluted EP<
Earning: available tccommonshareholde (including
effect of dilutive potential common shares) 59,846,723 $ 56,551,787 25,981,142 $ 230 $ 2.18
Nine month endedSeptember &, 20(8
BasicEP<
Earning: available tccommonshareholde! $ 97,882,84 $ 87,487,39 26,13984 $ 3.7« 3.3t
Effect of diluive potential common share
Bonus to employe: - - 133,16:
Stock option - - 17,00:
Diluted EPS
Earning: available tccommonshareholdel (including
effect of dilutive potential common shares) 9¥,882,841 $ 87,487,392 26,290,010 $ 3.72 $ 3.33
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As discussed in Note 3, effective January 1, 2@QB8, Company adopted Interpretation 2007-052 that
requires companies to record bonuses paid to emptogis an expense rather than as an appropridtion o
earnings. If the Company may settle the obligabigrcash, by issuing share, or in combination dhbo
cash and shares, potential shares from bonus tdopess which will be settled in shares should be
included in the weighted average number of shanéstanding in calculation of diluted EPS, if theasds
have a dilutive effect. The number of sharestisneded by dividing the amount of bonus to emplaybg

the closing price (after considering the dilutivieet of dividends) of the common shares on theuhed
sheet date. Such dilutive effect of the potergt@res needs to be included in the calculationilofed

EPS until the shares of employee bonus are resotvibg shareholders’ meeting in the following year

The average number of shares outstanding for EfSulation has been retroactively adjusted for the
issuance of stock dividends and employee stock dmmu This adjustment caused each of the basic and
diluted after income tax EPS for the nine monthdeeinSeptember 30, 2008 to decrease from NT$3.36 to
NT$3.35 and NT$3.34 to NT$3.33, respectively.

23. DISCLOSURES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Fair values of financial instruments were dgWs:

September 3

200¢ 200¢
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Asset
Financial assets at fair va
through profit or loss $ 367,461% 367,461 $ 12,970 $ 12,970
Available-for-sale financial asset 1,033,47. 1,033,47. 20,940,60 20,940,60
Held-to-maturity financial asse 21,653,07 21,747,72 16,479,14 16,604,17
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair valt
through profit or loss - - 314,630 314,630
Bonds payable (including curre
portion) 4,500,000 4,583,826 12,500,000 12,630,945
Other lon¢-term payables (includi
current portion) 1,355,167 1,355,167 2,972,537 2,972,537

b. Methods and assumptions used in estimating/&dires of financial instruments

1) The aforementioned financial instruments do inolude cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
other financial assets, refundable deposits, pagadnid guarantee deposits. The carrying amounts
of these financial instruments approximate theirvalues due to their short maturities.

2) Except for derivatives and structured time adds, fair values of financial assets at fair ealu
through profit or loss, available-for-sale and hildnaturity financial assets were based on their
quoted market prices.

3) For those derivatives and structured time depavith no quoted market prices, their fair valaee
determined using valuation techniques incorporagsigmates and assumptions that were consistent
with prevailing market conditions.

4) Fair value of bonds payable was based on tjusited market price.
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5) Fair value of other long-term payables wasetlasn the present value of expected cash flows,
which approximates their carrying amount.

The changes in fair value of derivatives cartravhich was outstanding as of September 30, 2009
2008 estimated using valuation techniques weregrézed as gains of NT$367,461 thousand and
losses of NT$301,660 thousand, respectively.

As of September 30, 2009 and 2008, financiaktasexposed to fair value interest rate risk were
NT$23,054,006 thousand and NT$37,432,719 thousasgectively and financial liabilities exposed to
fair value interest rate risk were NT$4,500,00udend and NT$12,814,630 thousand, respectively.

Movements of the unrealized gains or lossedirancial instruments for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 and 2008 were as follows:

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2009
From From
Available-  Available-for-
for-sale sale Financial
Financial  Assets Held by

Assets Investees Total
Balance, beginning of peri $ 32,658 $ (320,000)$ (287,342)
Recognized directly in sharehold equity 38,185 780,948 819,133
Removed from sharehold’ equity and recogniz:
in earnings (37,370 - (37,370
Balance, end of perit $ 33,473 $ 460,948 $ 494,421
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008
From From
Available-  Available-for-
for-sale sale Financial
Financial  Assets Held by
Assets Investees Total
Balance, beginning of peri $ 266,573 $ 414,424 % 680,997
Recognized directly in sharehold’ equity 179,779 (587,280) (407,501)
Removed from sharehold’ equity and recogniz:
in earnings (397,535 - (397,539
Balance, end of peri $ 48817 $ (172,856 $ (124,039

Information about financial risks

1) Market risk. The derivative financial instrants categorized as financial assets/liabilitietamt
value through profit or loss are mainly used to deedhe exchange rate fluctuations of
foreign-currency assets and liabilities; therefohe, market risk of derivatives will be offset thet
foreign exchange risk of these hedged items. Ab&lfor-sale financial assets held by the
Company are mainly fixed-interest-rate debt seiesitherefore, the fluctuations in market interest
rates will result in changes in fair values of thelebt securities. Subject to turmoils in the glob
financial market, the Company had evaluated itarfaial instruments and the Company believed
the exposure to market risk as of September 3® 2@3 not significant.
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2) Credit risk. Credit risk represents the ptgnoss that would be incurred by the Companthd
counter-parties or third-parties breached contrad&nancial instruments with positive fair values
at the balance sheet date are evaluated for aigklit Subject to turmoils in the global financial
market, the Company evaluated whether the finamtsstuments for any possible counter-party or
third-parties are reputable financial institutiobasiness enterprises, and government agencies and
accordingly, the Company believed that the Compaeyposure to credit risk as of September 30,
2009 was not significant.

3) Liquidity risk. The Company has sufficientesating capital to meet cash needs upon settlement
of derivative financial instruments and bonds p&gab Therefore, the liquidity risk is low.

4) Cash flow interest rate risk. The Companyniyainvests in fixed-interest-rate debt securities.
Therefore, cash flows are not expected to fluctgaeificantly due to changes in market interest
rates.

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company engages in business transactionghvtfollowing related parties:
a. Subsidiaries
TSMC North America
TSMC China
TSMC Europe
TSMC Japan
TSMC Korea
b. Investees
GUC (with a controlling financial interest)
Xintec (with a controlling financial interest)
VIS (accounted for using equity method)
SSMC (accounted for using equity method)
c. Indirect subsidiaries
WaferTech, LLC (WaferTech)

TSMC Technology, Inc. (TSMC Technology)
TSMC Design Technology Canada Inc. (TSMC Canada)

d. Indirect investee
VisEra Technology Company, Ltd. (VisEra), an redt investee accounted for using equity method.
e. Others

Related parties over which the Company has cbatrexercises significant influence but with which
the Company had no material transactions.
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Transactions with the aforementioned parties, rathen those disclosed in other notes, are sumetas
follows:

200¢ 200¢
Amount % Amount %
Nine month ended September
Sale:
TSMC North Americ $ 111,683,02 54 $ 156,727,22 59
Other: 1,662,37 1 1,333,07, -
$ 113,345.40 5 $ 158,060,29 9
Purchase
WaferTecl $ 3,872,11 18 $ 6,776,75 21
TSMC Chine 2,611,24 12 3,882,38. 12
SSMC 2,530,04 11 3,624,88 11
VIS 2,433,93 11 2,584 61! 8

$ 1144734 52 $ 16.,868,64 52

Manufacturing expense outsoucing

VisEre $ 22,55( - $ 66,32¢ -
Marketing expense- commissiol

TSMC Europ $ 234,89. 16 $ 299,04! 16

TSMC Japa 166,10¢ 12 195,34 11

TSMC Kore: 10,66" 1 13,52: 1

$ 411,668 29 $ 507,91: 28

Researc and development expen

TSMC Technologyprimarily consulting fee $ 299,63t 2 $ 263,28 2
TSMC Canadaprimarily consulting fee 115534 1 138,51t 1
Other: 41,778 - 13,31¢ -
$ 456,94! 3 ¢ 415,12: 3
Sale: of property, plant and equipmiand other asset
Xintec $ 58,45( 97 $ - -
TSMC Chine - - 1,849,31 91
Other: 262 - 10,66¢ -
$ 58,713 97 1,859,98 _ 91
Nor-operating income and ga
VIS (primarily technical service income, si
Note 27€) $ 179,168 7 % 262,132 5
TSMC Chine 146,58! 5 233,76. 4
SSMC (primarily technical service ince, se
Note 27d) 98,806 4 193,039 3
Others 262 - 85,27 2

$ 424,82. 16 $ 774,20¢ 14
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As of September :

Receivable

TSMC North Americ

Other:

Other receivable
VIS
TSMC Chine
SSMC

TSMC North Americ

WaferTecl
Other:

Payable
VIS
WaferTecl
TSMC Chine
SSMC
TSMC Technolog
Other:

Deferredcredits
TSMC Chine
VisEre

200¢

200¢

Amount %

$ 22,009,28 98
455,59 2

Amount %

$ 26,903,61 99
352,30¢ 1

$ 2246487 _10C

$ 141,35t 44

119,54. 37
42 ,58¢ 13
13,85 5

3,921 1
237 -

$ 2725591 _10C

$ 86,91¢ 28
115,76t 37
63,49( 20

18,98¢ 6

25,95¢ 8

4,17¢ 1

$ 321,49¢ _10C

$ 759,73 33

605,00t 26
456,02t 2C
273,18 12
126,07- 6

74,12¢ 3

$ 315,29: _10C

$ 668,21! 26

800,32- 31
370,15« 14
574,01 22
64,79¢ 3
96,37 4

$ 229415 _10C

$ 257387 _10C

$ 43,730 61 $ 230,617 40
- - 15,544 2
$ 43,730 __ 61 $ 246,161 _ 42

The sales prices and payment terms to relateceparere not significantly different from thosesafles to
third parties. For other related party transaatjqrices and terms were determined in accordaritte w
mutual agreements.

The Company deferred the net gains (classifieceutite deferred credits) derived from sales of eryp
plant, and equipment to TSMC China and VisEra, #reh recognized such gains (classified under the
non-operating income and gains) over the deprezialgs of the disposed assets.

The Company leased certain buildings and fadglitiee VisEra. The rental income were classifiedaund
non-operating income and gains. The lease termgepes were determined in accordance with mutual
agreements. The lease agreement between the CpmpaiVisEra expired in April 2008.

. PLEDGED OR MORTGAGED ASSETS

As of September 30, 2009, the Company had pletigeddeposits of NT$605,602 thousand (classified as
other financial assets) as collateral for landdesgreements and customs duty guarantee.
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26. SIGNIFICANT LONG-TERM LEASES

The Company leases several parcels of land frenStience Park Administration. These operatingdea
expire on various dates from December 2009 to Dbee2028 and can be renewed upon expiration.

As of September 30, 2009, future lease payments asfollows:

Year Amount

2009 (4th quarte) $  75,32¢
2C1C 256,54
2011 254,96
2012 287,49:
201¢ 265,84
2014 and thereaftt 2,014,87.

$ 3,155,04:

27. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Significant commitments and contingencies of tr@m@any as of September 30, 2009, excluding those
disclosed in other notes, were as follows:

a. Under a technical cooperation agreement wil,IThe R.O.C. Government or its designee approved
by the Company can use up to 35% of the Compangzadity if the Company’s outstanding
commitments to its customers are not prejudiceche Term of this agreement is for five years
beginning from January 1, 1987 and is automaticaihewed for successive periods of five years snles
otherwise terminated by either party with one y@&or notice.

b. Under several foundry agreements, the Comphaly seserve a portion of its production capacay f
certain major customers that have guarantee depeih the Company. As of September 30, 2009
the Company had a total of US$32,654 thousand afaguiee deposits.

c. Under a Shareholders Agreement entered into Rhilips and EDB Investments Pte Ltd. on March 30,
1999, the parties formed a joint venture compar§M§S, which is an integrated circuit foundry in
Singapore. The Company’s equity interest in SSMS 82%. Nevertheless, Philips parted with its
semiconductor company which was renamed as NXP B.\Geptember 2006. The Company and
NXP B.V. purchased all the SSMC shares owned by EiYBstments Pte Ltd. pro rata according to the
Shareholders Agreement on November 15, 2006. Alfterpurchase, the Company and NXP B.V.
currently own approximately 39% and 61% of the SSkt@res respectively. The Company and
Philips (now NXP B.V.) are required, in the aggrtegado purchase at least 70% of SSMC's capacity,
but the Company alone is not required to purchaseenthan 28% of the capacity. If any party
defaults on the commitment and the capacity utibraof SSMC fall below a specific percentage ef it
capacity, the defaulting party is required to congage SSMC for all related unavoidable costs.

d. The Company provides technical services to SSM@er a Technical Cooperation Agreement (the
Agreement) effective March 30, 1999. The Compaageives compensation for such services
computed at a specific percentage of net sellitgef all products sold by SSMC. The Agreement
shall remain in force for ten years and will beomoatically renewed for successive periods of five
years each unless pre-terminated by either padgmcertain conditions.
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e.

The Company provides a technology transfer I® Whder a Manufacturing License and Technology
Transfer Agreement entered into on April 1, 200#he Company receives compensation for such
technology transfer in the form of royalty paymefitsan VIS computed at specific percentages of net
selling price of certain products sold by VIS. \A§reed to reserve its certain capacity to manufact
for the Company certain products at prices as ddogehe parties.

TSMC, TSMC North America and WaferTech filedaries of lawsuits in late 2003 and 2004 against
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corpanati SMIC (Shanghai) and SMIC Americas
(aggregately referring to as “SMIC”). The lawsuéleged that SMIC infringed multiple TSMC,
TSMC North America and WaferTech patents and misgpjated TSMC, TSMC North America and
WaferTech’s trade secrets. These suits were daitleof court on January 30, 2005. As part of the
settlement, Semiconductor Manufacturing Internatid@orporation shall pay US$175 million over six
years to resolve TSMC, TSMC North America and WBéeh'’s claims. As of September 30, 2009,
SMIC had paid US$135 million in accordance with thens of this settlement agreement. In August
2006, TSMC, TSMC North America and WaferTech fiethwsuit against SMIC in Alameda County
Superior Court in California for breach of aforeriened settlement agreement, breach of promissory
notes and trade secret misappropriation, seekifgndative relief and monetary damages. In
September 2006, SMIC filed a cross-complaint agai®viC, TSMC North America and WaferTech
in the same court, alleging TSMC, TSMC North Amarand WaferTech of breach of the settlement
agreement and implied covenant of good faith amddealing, in response to TSMC, TSMC North
America and WaferTech's August complaint. In Nokem2006, SMIC filed a complaint with
Beijing People's High Court against TSMC, TSMC Moiimerica and WaferTech alleging defamation
and breach of good faith. The California Statee®igp Court of Alameda County issued an Order on
TSMC, TSMC North America and WaferTech’s pre-tmabtion for a preliminary injunction against
SMIC on September 7, 2007. In the Order, the Ctmumd “TSMC has demonstrated a significant
likelihood that it will ultimately prevail on the enits of its claim for breach of certain paragraphthe
(2005) Settlement Agreement” with SMIC. The Coaiso found “TSMC has demonstrated a
significant probability of establishing that SMI@tains and is using TSMC Information in SMIC’s
0.13um and smaller technologies, and there isfgigni threat of serious irreparable harm to TSMC i
SMIC were to disclose or transfer that informatimiore final resolution of the case.” Therefohe t
Court ordered that, effective immediately, SMIC mpsovide advance notice and an opportunity for
TSMC, TSMC North America and WaferTech to objecfobe disclosing items enumerated in the
Court Order to SMIC’s third party partners. Theu@p however, did not grant a preliminary
injunction as requested by TSMC, TSMC North Ameaca WaferTech. In January 2009, the court
in the California action held a four-day bench Ittia determine whether a Settlement Agreement
existed between the parties, and if there weregagement, the interpretation of certain terms. SMI
contended that there was no binding Settlement exgemt, and TSMC, TSMC North America and
WaferTech contended that the Settlement Agreemgnéd on January 30, 2005 and finalized shortly
thereafter and repeatedly ratified bound the parti€On March 10, 2009, the Court issued its Stat¢me
of Decision. The Court rejected SMIC's contentiand found that the parties were bound by the
Settlement Agreement identified by TSMC, TSMC No#tmerica and WaferTech. The Court also
interpreted the meaning of certain provisions wiitthie Settlement Agreement. Regarding the claims
raised by SMIC in the Beijing lawsuit, the Beijiftggople's High Court has on June 10, 2009 rejected
those claims and dismissed the lawsuit. SMIC Ippealed. The matters are pending in both courts.
The result of the above-mentioned litigation carmtetermined at this time.

28. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Following are the additional disclosures requingdhe SFB for the Company and its investees:

a.

b.

C.

Financing provided: None;
Endorsement/guarantee provided: None;

Marketable securities held: Please see Tahtathed;
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Marketable securities acquired or disposed obsats or prices of at least NT$100 million or 26#the
paid-in capital: Please see Table 2 attached;

Acquisition of individual real estate propesta costs of at least NT$100 million or 20% of plaéd-in
capital:  None;

Disposal of individual real estate propertiépaces of at least NT$100 million or 20% of thaigsin
capital: None;

Total purchases from or sales to related madiat least NT$100 million or 20% of the paideapital:
Please see Table 3 attached,

Receivable from related parties amounting tteast NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital
Please see Table 4 attached;

Names, locations, and related information ofestees on which the Company exercises significant
influence: Please see Table 5 attached;

Information about derivatives of investees owich the Company has a controlling interest:

TSMC China entered into forward exchange corgraletring the nine months ended September 30,
2009 to manage exposures due to foreign exchamgdluatuations. Outstanding forward exchange
contracts as of September 30, 2009:

Contract Amount
Maturity Date (in Thousands)

Sell US$/Buy RMB October 2009 US$3,950/RMB26,974

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009ps&s arising from forward exchange contracts of
TSMC China were NT$844 thousand.

Xintec entered into forward exchange contractsnduthe nine months ended September 30, 2009 to
manage exposures due to foreign exchange rateidlimhs. Outstanding forward exchange contracts
as of September 30, 2009:

Contract Amount
Maturity Date (in Thousands)

Sell US$/Buy NT$ October 2009 to November 2009 US$9,100/NT$295,973

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009janes$ arising from forward exchange contracts of
Xintec were NT$686 thousand.

Information on investment in Mainland China

1) The name of the investee in Mainland China,rtiain businesses and products, its issued capital,
method of investment, information on inflow or dow¥ of capital, percentage of ownership, equity
in the net gain or net loss, ending balance, ammgadived as dividends from the investee, and the
limitation on investee: Please see Table 6 atthche

2) Significant direct or indirect transactionsttwithe investee, its prices and terms of payment,

unrealized gain or loss, and other related infolwnatvhich is helpful to understand the impact of
investment in Mainland China on financial report®lease see Note 24.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limitedand Investees

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD

SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 1

September 30, 2009

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatemerAccount Shares/Units Carrying Value Percentage of Marlfsts\gl\ljzlzreNet Note
(in Thousands) | (US$ in Thousands)  Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)
The Company Corporate bond

Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltc - Available-for-sale financial asse - $ 1,033472 N/A $ 1,03347¢

Taiwan Power Compai - Held-to-maturity financial asse - 3,384,84E N/A 3,293,121

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation - ” - 3,179,081 N/A 3,206,644

Nan Ya Plastics Corporation - ” - 1,999,746 N/A 2,031,690

Formosa Plastics Corporation - ” - 1,671,881 N/A 1,688,217

China Steel Corporation - " - 1,513,313 N/A 1,532,465

CPC Corporation, Taiwan - ” - 1,000,036 N/A 999,854

Government bond

European Investment Bank Bonds - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 2,01%)6 N/A 2,025,500

2003 Asian Development Bank Govt. Bond - ” - 888,560 N/A 875,103

Stocks

TSMC Global Subsidiary Investments accounted for using 1 45,492,790 100 45,492,790

equity metho

TSMC Partners Subsidiary " 988,268 32,627,788 100 32,627,788

VIS Investee accounted for using equity ” 628,223 9,410,696 37 8,795,129
methoc

SSMC Investee accounted for using equity ” 314 5,899,305 39 5,274,907
methoc

TSMC North America Subsidiary ” 11,000 2,686,753 100 2,686,753

Xintec Investee with a controlling financial ” 93,081 1,372,699 41 1,328,827
interes

GuC Investee with a controlling financial ” 46,688 960,442 36 7,096,555
interest

TSMC Europe Subsidiary ” - 152,965 100 152,965

TSMC Japan Subsidiary ” 6 136,710 100 136,710

TSMC Korea Subsidiary ” 80 18,115 100 18,115

United Industrial Gases Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cost 16,783 588 10 288,159

Shin-Etsu Handotai Taiwan Co., Ltd. - " 10,500 105,000 7 328,546

W.K. Technology Fund IV - ” 4,000 40,000 2 43,413

Fund

Horizon Ventures Fur - Financial assets carried at ¢ - 103,99: 12 103,99:

Crimson Asia Capital - ” - 58,987 1 58,987

Capita

TSMC China Subsidiary Investments accounted for using - 3,606,012 100 3,607,259

equity method

VTAF Il Subsidiary ” - 1,341,398 98 1,324,195

VTAF Il Subsidiary " - 1,059,820 98 1,055,364

Emerging Alliance Subsidiary ” - 319,571 99 319,571

(Continued
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September 30, 2009
- . - . . . . Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount Shares/Units Carrying Value Percentage of Asset Value Note
; . 20
(in Thousands) | (US$ in Thousands)  Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)
TSMC Partners Corporate bond
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn - Held-to-maturity financial assets - Us$ 2®60 N/A uss 21,412
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn - " - UsS$ 20,239 N/A US$ 21,078
Common Stocks
TSMC Development, Inc. (TSMC Development) Subsidia Investments accounted for using 1 US$ 690,624 100 US$ 690,624
equity method
VisEra Holding Company Investee accounted for gisiquity ” 43,000 US$ 68,198 49 US$ 68,198
methoc
InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc.L@C. |Subsidiary ” 32,289 US$ 28,133 97 US$ 28,133
(ISDF 11
TSMC Technology Subsidiary ” 1 Us$ 8,932 100 Us$ 8,932
InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc. BBD | Subsidiary ” 7,680 uUs$ 7,746 97 uUs$ 7,746
TSMC Canada Subsidiary ” 2,300 Us$ 3,057 100 Us$ 3,057
Mcube Inc. Investee accounted for using equity ” 5,333 us$ 800 74 uss 800
method
Preferred stock
Mcube Inc. Investee accounted for using equity  |Investments accounted for using 1,000 us$ 1,000 10 uss 1,000
method equity method
TSMC Development Corporate bond
GE Capital Corp. - Held-to-maturity financial assets - Us$ 2@36 N/A uUs$ 21,078
JP Morgan Chase & Co. - " - US$ 15,000 N/A US$ 15,246
Stocks
WaferTech Subsidiary Investments accounted for using 293,637 US$ 196,675 100 US$ 196,675
equity metho
Emerging Alliance Common stock
RichWave Technology Cor - Financial assets carried at ¢ 4,247 USss  1,64¢ 1C Us§  1,64¢
Global Investment Holding Inc. - ” 10,000 Us$ 3,065 6 Us$ 3,065
Preferred stock
Audience, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 1,654 Us$ 0 25 1 uss$ 250
Axiom Microdevices, Inc. - " 1,000 us$ 24 1 uss 24
Mosaic Systems, Inc. - ” 2,481 Us$ 12 6 Us$ 12
Next 10, Inc. - n 800 uss$ 500 1 uss 500
Optichron, Inc. - ” 1,281 uUss 1,072 2 uUss 1,072
Optimal Corporation - ” - uss$ 229 - uss 229
Pixim, Inc. - " 4,642 us$ 1,137 2 uUs$ 1,137
QST Holdings, LLC - " - uss$ 131 4 us$ 131
Teknovus, Inc. - " 6,977 us$ 1,327 2 us$ 1,327
Capita
VentureTech Alliance Holdings, LLC (VTA Holdings) Subsidiary Investments accounted for using - - 7 -
equity method
VTAF Il Common stoc
Leadtrend - Available-for-sale financial assets 1,515 US$9,204 5 Us$ 9,204
RichWave Technology Corp. - Financial assets carried at cost 1,043 uUs$ 0 73 1 uss$ 730
Sentelic - ” 1,200 Us$ 2,040 15 Us$ 2,040
Preferred stock
5V Technologies, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 2,890 US$ 162, 15 uss$ 2,168
Aquantia - n 2,108 Us$ 2,573 5 Uss 2,573
Audience, Inc. - ” 7,956 Us$ 1,838 2 Us$ 1,838
Axiom Microdevices, Inc. - " 7,017 uss$ 741 13 uss 741
(Continued)
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September 30, 2009
- . - . . . . Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount 'Shares/Unlts Car(ymg Value Percentage of Asset Value Note
(in Thousands) (US$ in Thousands)|  Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)
VTAF Il Preferred stock
Beceem Communications - Financial assets carried at cost 834 Us$ 11,70 1 uss$ 1,701
Impinj, Inc. - ” 475 USs$ 1,000 - UsS$ 1,000
Next 10, Inc. - ” 3,795 us$ 953 2 uss$ 953
Optichron, Inc. - ” 2,784 US$ 2,664 4 US$ 2,664
Pixim, Inc. - ” 33,347 uUs$ 1,878 2 uUss 1,878
Power Analog Microelectronics - ” 6,249 US$ 3,185 18 US$ 3,185
QST Holdings, LLC - ” - uss$ 593 19 uss 593
Teknovus, Inc. - " 1,599 uss$ 454 - uss$ 454
Xceive - ” 3,800 Us$ 1,496 US$ 1,496
Capital
VTA Holdings Subsidiary Investments accounted for using - - 31 -
equity method
VTAF Il ICommon stock
Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investits accounted for using 4,590 us$ 1,055 51 uss 1,055
equity method
Acionn Technology Corporation Investee accountedi§ing equity ” 4,500 us$ 730 41 uss 730
method
Preferred stock
Auramicro, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 3,816 US$ 1481, 20 Us$ 1,145
BridgeLux, Inc. - ” 4,955 Us$ 6,391 4 USs$ 6,391
Exclara, Inc. - " 21,708 US$ 4,568 18 US$ 4,568
GTBEF, Inc. - ” 1,154 uss$ 1,500 N/A uss$ 1,500
InvenSense, Inc. - " 816 Us$ 1,000 1 Us$ 1,000
LiquidLeds Lighting Corp. - ” 1,600 us$ 800 11 uss 800
M2000, Inc. - n 3,000 Us$ 3,000 5 Us$ 3,000
Neoconix, Inc. - " 3,283 US$ 4,608 6 US$ 4,608
Powervation, Ltd. - n 310 Us$ 4,678 19 Us$ 4,678
Quellan, Inc. - n 3,106 us$ 495 6 uss$ 495
Silicon Technical Services, LLC - " 1,055 Us$ 1,208 2 Us$ 1,208
Tilera, Inc. - n 3,222 us$ 2,781 3 uss 2,781
Validity Sensors, Inc. - ” 8,070 Us$ 3,089 3 Us$ 3,089
Capital
Growth Fund Limited (Growth Fund) Subsidiary Intresnts accounted for using - uss$ 856 100 us$ 856
equity method
VTA Holdings Subsidiary ” - - 62 -
Growth Fund Common stock
Staccato - Financial assets carried at cost 10 Uss$ 2 - uss$ 25
SiliconBlue Technologies Inc. - ” 5,107 us$ 762 2 uss$ 762
ISDF Common stoc
Memsic, Inc - Available-for-sale financial asse 1,36¢ uUs§ 511z 6 us§  511:
Capella Microsystems (Taiwan), Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 557 Us$ 15 2 Uss$ 154
Preferred stoc
Integrated Memory Logic, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 2,872 USs$ 2211, 9 uss$ 1,221
IP Unity, Inc. - n 1,008 Us$ 290 1 Us$ 290
NanoAmp Solutions, Inc. - ” 541 uss$ 327 2 uss 327
Sonics, Inc. - " 230 uss$ 730 2 uss$ 730
(Continued)

-40 -



September 30, 2009

Market Value or Net

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount 'Shares/Units Car(ying Value Percentage of Asset Value Note
(in Thousands) (US$ in Thousands)|  Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)
ISDF Il Common stock
Memsic, Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 1,145 US$4,292 5 Uss 4,292
Treadchip Technologies Corp. - ” 503 Us$ 1,306 1 Us$ 1,306
Sonics, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 278 uss$ 3 3 uss 32
Epic Communication, Inc. - " 50 uss$ 23 - Uss$ 23
EON Technology, Corp. - ” 2,494 us$ 691 3 uss$ 691
Goyatek Technology, Corp. - ” 932 Us$ 545 6 Us$ 545
Capella Microsystems (Taiwan), Inc. - ” 561 uss$ 210 2 uss 210
Auden Technology MFG. Co., Ltd. - ” 1,049 us$ 223 3 uss$ 223
Preferred stock
Alchip Technologies Limited - Financial assets carried at cost 6,979 US$ 668, 18 US$ 3,664
FangTek, Inc. - " 7,064 Us$ 3,428 16 US$ 3,428
Kilopass Technology, Inc. - ” 3,887 Us$ 500 5 Us$ 500
NanoAmp Solutions, Inc. - ” 375 Us$ 227 1 Us$ 227
Sonics, Inc. - " 264 Us$ 926 3 Us$ 926
GuUC Open-end mutual funds
Jih Sun Bond Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 5,671 $ 0,080 - $ 80,010
FSITC Taiwan Bond Fund - ” 294 50,004 - 50,004
Cathay Bond Fund - ” 1,674 20,005 - 20,005
Common stock
GUC-NA Subsidiary Investments accounted for using 800 36,870 100 36,870
equity method
GUC-Japan Subsidiary ” 1 13,062 100 13,062
GUC-Europe Subsidiary ” - 5,281 100 5,281
GucC-BVI Subsidiary ” 50 1,485 100 1,485
Xintec Capita
Compositech Lt - Financial assets carried at ¢ 587 - 3 -
TSMC Global Money market funds
Ssga Cash Mgmt Global Offshu - Available-for-sale fnancial asse 225,97¢ US$ 225,97t N/A US$ 225,97¢
Government bond
US Treasury N/B - Available-for-sale financial assets 25,000 $US25,019 N/A US$ 25,019
United States Treas Nts - " 10,496 Us$ 10,595 N/A Us$ 10,595
WI Treasury - ” 107,500 US$ 107,100 N/A US$ 107,100
Societe De Financement De Lec - Held-to-maturity financial assets 15,000 US$5,000 N/A US$ 15,081
Corporate bon
Ab Svensk Exportkredit Swedish - Available-for-sale financial assets 5,000 US$5,189 N/A uss 5,189
American Exp Bk Fdic Gtd Tl¢ - n 1,750 uUs$ 1,786 N/A Us$ 1,786
Bear Stearns Cos Inc. - " 5,000 US$ 4,965 N/A US$ 4,965
Citibank NA - n 5,000 USs$ 4,997 N/A Us$ 4,997
General Ele Cap Corg - 1 5,000 Uss 4,817 N/A uUss 4817
General Elec Cap Corp. - " 7,000 uUss 7,002 N/A uUs$ 7,002
Keycorp Fdic Gtd Tlg - " 5,000 Us$ 5,061 N/A Us$ 5,061
Met Life Glob Funding | - ” 500 US$ 505 N/A US$ 505
Metropolitan Life Global Fdg | - 1 1,750 Us$ 1,646 N/A Us$ 1,646
Royal Bk of Scotland Plc - n 5,000 Us$ 5,071 N/A uUss$ 5,071
Royal Bk Scotland Grp Plc 144A - ” 6,500 Us$ 6,597 N/A us$ 6,597
Suncorp Metway Ltd. - " 5,000 Us$ 5,187 N/A us$ 5,187
Wachovia Corp. New - " 4,000 US$ 4,238 N/A US$ 4,238
Nationwide Building Society - Held-to-maturity financial assets 8,000 US$ ,008 N/A Us$ 8,010
(Continued
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Held Company Name

Marketable Securities Type and Nae

Relationship with the Company

Financial StatememAccount

September 3/, 200¢

Shares/Units

Carrying Value

Market Value or Net

Percentage of Asset Value Note
; . 2
(in Thousands) (US$ in Thousands)| Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)
TSMC Globa Corporate issec note

Royal bk of scotlan - Available-for-sale financial assets 5,000 US$4,982 N/A US$ 4,982

Barclays U.S. Fdg LLC - ” 4,500 US$ 4,489 N/A US$ 4,489
Agency bonds

Finma Pool 852347 - Available-for-sale financial assets 3,805 US$4,033 N/A uss$ 4,033

(Concluded

-42 -




Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limitedand Investees

MARKETABLE SECURITIES ACQUIRED AND DISPOSED OF AT C OSTS OR PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 2

rotablo S Financial . Beginning Balance - y Acquisition Disposal (Note 2) | ( ) Eridg Balance (Note 3)
Marketable Securities Type and Nature o . Amount Shares/Units Amount . Amount Carrying Value | Gain (Loss) or .
Company Namg Name S;iforﬂﬁ?t Counter-party Relationship (iﬁr}?gjlsgzléss) (Us$in (in Thousands) (Us$in (lﬁr%.ahrgz/sgmz) (Uss$in (Us$in Disposal (US$ (lﬁr%.eggzlsgzzz) Iﬁ‘?.?]g:tsggf)
Thousands) (Note 1) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) | in Thousands)
The Company |_Corporate bond
Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd. Available-for-saleGrand Cathay Securities Corp. - - |$ 2032658 - % - - |$ 1,037,370|$ 1,000,000 $ 37,370 - |$ 1033473
financial assets| and several financial
institutions
Taiwan Power Company Held-to-maturit; ” - - 4,209,629 - 203,892 - - - - - 3,384,845
financial asse
Formosa Petrochemical " ” - - 3,554,908 - 457,351 - - - - - 3,179,081
Corporation
Formosa Plastic Corporation " ” - - 2,385,285 - 203,994 - - - - - 1,671,881
China Steel Corporation ” ” - - 1,000,000 - 514,672 - - - - - 1,513,313
Government bond
European Investment Bank Bonjételd-to-maturity |Grand Cathay Securities Corp. - - 383,387 - 2,025,500 - 400,000 383,909 16,091 - 2,015,610
financial assets| and several financial
institutions
Capita
VTAF Il Investments - Subsidiary - 1,305,605 - 262,922 - - - - - 1,341,398
accounted for
using equity
methoc
TSMC Corporate bon
Development|JP Morgan Chase & Co. Held-to-maturityJP Morgan Securitied Inc. - - - | US$ 15,000 - - - - - | US$ 15,000
financial assets
GuUC Open-end mutual funds
Jih Sun Bond Fund Available-for-saldih Sun Investment Trust Co. - - - 13,475 190,000 7,804 110,075 110,000 75 5671 80,010
financial assets| Ltd.
FSITC Taiwan Bond Fund " First Securities Investment - - - 794 135,000 500 85,193 85,000 193 294 50,004
Trust Co., Ltd.
Prudential Financial Bond Fund| ” Prudential Financial Securitiep - - - 11,261 170,000 11,261 170,319 170,000 319 - -
Investment Trust Enterpriseg
PCA Well Pool Fund " PCA Securities Investment - - - 13,121 170,000 13,261 170,241 170,000 241 - -
Trust Co., Ltd.
Hua Nan Phoenix Bond Fund " Hua Nan Investment Trust Cq., - - - 6,434 100,000 6,434 100,131 100,000 131 - -
Ltd.
TSMC Global | Money market funds
Ssga Cash Mgmt Global Offshgwvailable-for-sale - - 30,435 | US$ 30,435 471,418 | US$ 471,418 275,875 | US$ 275,875| US$ 275,875 - 225,978 | US$ 225,978
financial asse
Government bond
US Treasury N/B Available-for-sale - - - - 25,000 | US$ 25,014 - - - - 25,000 | US$ 25,019
financial assets
WI Treasury ” - - - - 107,500 | US$ 107,100 - - - - 107,500 | US$ 107,100
Societe De Financement De Leg  Held-to-maturity - - - - 15,000 | US$ 15,000 - - - - 15,000 | US$ 15,000
financial assets
(Continued
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Marketable S s T Financial Nat . Beginnini Ba'I:mce - - IUA_Equisitic;n - R Difposa::(Notg 2)V | — Eridg Balance (Note 3)
arketable Securities Type ang ature o ] moun ares/Units moun ] moun arrying Value | Gain (Loss) or )
I I A i v e P o T Pt o o
Thousands) (Note 1) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) | in Thousands)
TSMC Global | Corporate bond
Ab Svensk Exportkredit Swedis[Available-for-sale - - -8 - 5,000 | US$ 5,185 -8 -8 - - 5,000 | US$ 5,189
financial assets
Bear Stearns Cos Inc. " - - - - 5,000 | US$ 4,965 - - - - 5,000 | US$ 4,965
Chase Manhattan Corp. New ” - - 3,250 | US$ 3,353 - | US$ - 3,250 | US$ 3,380 | US$ 3,480 | US$ (100) - | US$ -
Citibank NA ” - - - - 5,000 | US$ 4,995 - - - - 5,000 | US$ 4,997
Deutsche Bank Ag London ” - - 2,995 | UsS$ 3,013 - - 2,995 | US$ 3,021 | US$ 3,041 | US$ (20) - -
General Elec Cap Corp. ” - - - - 5,000 | US$ 4,834 - - - - 5,000 | US$ 4,817
General Elec Cap Corp. ” - - - - 7,000 | US$ 7,002 - - - - 7,000 | US$ 7,002
Keycorp Fdic Gtd Tlgp ” - - - - 5,000 | US$ 5,061 - - - - 5,000 | US$ 5,061
Morgan Stanley " - - 4,855 | US$ 4,552 - - 4,855 | US$ 4,751 | US$ 4,768 | US$ a7) - -
Royal Bk of Scotland Plc n - - - - 5,000 | US$ 5,106 - - - - 5,000 | US$ 5,071
Royal Bk Scotland Grp Plc 144/ " - - - - 6,500 | US$ 6,597 - - - - 6,500 | US$ 6,597
Suncorp Metway Ltd. n - - - - 5,000 | US$ 5,192 - - - - 5,000 | US$ 5,187
Wachovia Corp. New ” - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,239 - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,238
Wachovia Corp. New ” - - 3,130 |US$ 3,135 - - 3,130 |US$ 3,195 | US$ 3,100 | US$ 95 - -
Wells Fargo + Co. New Med Trin " - - 4,500 | US$ 4,493 - - 4,500 | US$ 4,524 | US$ 4,282 | US$ 242 - -
Nationwide Building Society Held-to-maturity - - - - 8,000 | US$ 8,000 - - - - 8,000 | US$ 8,000
financial assets
Corporate issued note
Royal bk of scotland Available-for-salp - - - - 5,000 | US$ 4,982 - - - - 5,000 | US$ 4,982
financial assets
Barclays U.S. Fdg LLC ” - - - - 4,500 | US$ 4,489 - - - - 4,500 | US$ 4,489
Agency bonds
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1912 Available-for-sale - - 3,215 | US$ 3,285 - - 3,179 [US$ 3,281 |US$ 3,171 | US$ 110 36 -
financial asse
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1920¢ n - - 5,449 | US$ 5,501 - - 5335 | US$ 5511 |US$ 5,225| US$ 286 114 -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. ” - - 3,060 | US$ 3,108 - - 3,005 | US$ 3,078 | US$ 3,003 | US$ 75 55 -
Fnma Pool 2572« " - - 3,456 | US$ 3,513 - - 3,415 | US$ 3,513 | US$ 3,437 | US$ 76 41 -
Fnma Pool 6912¢ ” - - 2,963 | US$ 3,039 - - 2,932 |US$ 3,028 | US$ 2,920 | US$ 108 31 -
Fnma Pool 8523¢ n - - - - 3,805 | US$ 4,038 - - - - 3,805 | US$ 4,033
Fnma Pool 8887¢ ” - - 3,669 | US$ 3,776 - - 3,659 |US$ 3,828 | US$ 3,801 | US$ 27 10 -
Fnma Pool 8887¢ n - - 4,105 | US$ 4,242 - - 4,071 | US$ 4,265 | US$ 4,207 | US$ 58 34 -
Fed Home Ln Bar n - - 5,000 | US$ 5,305 - - 5,000 | US$ 5282 |US$ 5,035| US$ 247 - -
Federal Farm Cr Bl n - - 3,400 | US$ 3,610 - - 3,400 | US$ 3,590 | US$ 3,411 | US$ 179 - -
Federal Farm Credit Bank " - - 3,375 | US$ 3,433 - - 3,375 |US$ 3,430 |US$ 3,370 | US$ 60 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks ” - - 3,725 | US$ 3,854 - - 3,725 | US$ 3,852 | US$ 3,721 | US$ 131 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks " - - 5,000 | US$ 5,320 - - 5,000 |US$ 5312 |US$ 5,098 | US$ 214 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks ” - - 4,000 | US$ 4,148 - - 4,000 | US$ 4,151 | US$ 4,136 | US$ 15 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg " - - 5,000 | US$ 5,340 - - 5,000 | US$ 5334 |US$ 5,186 | US$ 148 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. ” - - 3,340 | US$ 3,428 - - 3,340 | US$ 3432 |US$ 3,336 | US$ 96 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. " - - 3,500 | US$ 3,560 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,561 | US$ 3,494 | US$ 67 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. 1 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,743 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,749 | US$ 3,786 | US$ (37) - -
Federal Home Loan Bank " - - 4,500 | US$ 4,710 - - 4,500 | US$ 4,709 | US$ 4,518 | US$ 191 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn ” - - 3,700 | US$ 3,713 - - 3,700 |US$ 3,712 | US$ 3,700 | US$ 12 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn ” - - 4,000 |US$ 4,169 - - 4,000 | US$ 4,179 | US$ 4,116 | US$ 63 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn 1 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,809 - - 3,500 |US$ 3,801 |US$  3,645| US$ 156 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn ” - - 3,750 | US$ 4,134 - - 3,750 | US$ 4,127 | US$ 4,151 | US$ (24) - -
(Continued
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Marketable S s T Financial Nat . Beginnini Ba'I:mce - - IUA_Equisitic;n - R Difposa::(Notg 2)V | — Eridg Balance (Note 3)
arketable Securities e and ature of . moun ares/Units moun . moun arrying Value | Gain (Loss) or )
a7 S| Cmen oo | eS| S || OSSn| Smeste | Gssn | S| Gaponl 055 Smestine | Aot
Thousands) (Note 1) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) | in Thousands)
Corporate issued asset-backed
securities
Banc Amer Coml Mtg Int Available-for-sale - - 4597 | US$ 4,584 -1 - 4,472 | US$ 4,480 | US$ 4,584 | US$ (104) 125 | $ -
financial assets
Cit Equip Coll T " - - 4,000 | US$ 3,884 - - 4,000 | US$ 3,925 | US$ 3,996 | US$ (71) - -
Credit Suisse First Boston b " - - 4,353 | US$ 4,349 - - 4,090 | US$ 4,085 | US$ 4,188 | US$ (103) 263 -
First Un Natl Bk Coml Mtg T " - - 4,788 | US$ 4,715 - - 4,774 | US$ 4,780 | US$ 4,954 | US$  (174) 14 -
Lb Ubs Coml Mtg Tr " - - 3,737 | US$ 3,495 - - 3,725 | US$ 3,537 | US$ 3,697 | US$ (160) 12 -
Tiaa Seasoned Coml Mtg Tr ” - - 3,397 |US$ 3,163 - - 3,375 | US$ 3,283 | US$ 3,392 | US$ (109) 22 -
Wamu Mtg " - - 3,214 | US$ 2,925 - - 3,172 |US$ 3,106 | US$ 3,114 | US$ 8) 42 -

Note 1: The shares/units and amount of marketadalerities acquired do not include stock dividerrdsfinvestees.

Note 2: The data for marketable securities dispesetlde bonds maturities and capital return fratvs&iaries.

Note 3: The ending balance includes the amortinatfgpremium/discount on bonds investments, urzedlvaluation gains/ losses on financial assetsskation adjustments or equity in earnings/ loséesjuity method investees.
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TABLE 3

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Investees

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPI TAL
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction NOteS/A;Z%ngbﬁ’:yable or
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationships 3 — o Note
Pug::lzzes Amount 'I{oottgl Payment Terms Ur(\;\tkl;z;: € Payr?sgg;erms Ending Balance T/Oottgl
The Company TSMC North America Subsidiary Sales 11%683,024 54 Net 30 days after invoice date - - $ 22,009,288 51
GUC Investee with a controlling [Sales 1,497,213 1 Net 30 days after monthlyiredps - - 455,417 1
financial interest
VIS Investee accounted for usingSales 107,316 - Net 30 days after monthly ctpsin - - - -
equity method
WaferTech Indirect subsidiary Purchases 3,8m2,1 18 Net 30 days after monthly closing - - (605,006) 6
TSMC China Subsidiary Purchases 2,611,248 12 t30eays after monthly closing - - (456,026) 4
SSMC Investee accounted for usingPurchases 2,530,044 11 Net 30 days after moalbdéjng - - (273,184) 3
equity method
VIS Investee accounted for usingPurchases 2,433,937 11 Net 30 days after mookbdjng - - (759,737) 7
equity method
GUC TSMC North America Same parent company Purchase 701,967 29 |Net 30 days after invoice date/| - - (97,319) 10
45 days after monthly closing

Note: The sales prices and payment terms to refmettbs were not significantly different from tleosf sales to third parties. For other relatedypaansactions, prices and terms were determimedc¢ordance with mutual agreements.
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TABLE 4

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Investees

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LE AST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Overdue Amounts Received
. . . Turnover Days ; Allowance for Bad
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationships Ending Balance (Note 1) Amounts Action Taken in S;gfigguent Debts
The Company TSMC North America Subsidiary $ 23,039 41 $ 7,315,356 - $ 8,350,804 $ -
GUC Investee with a controlling 455,417 61 276 - 169,404 -
financial interest
VIS Investee accounted for using 141,358 (Note 2) 22,012 Accelerate demandamounts receivable 216 -
equity method
TSMC China Subsidiary 119,544 (Note 2) - - - -

Note 1: The calculation of turnover days excludiaeoreceivables from related parties.

Note 2: The ending balance primarily consistedtbépreceivables, which is not applicable for takglation of turnover days.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limitedand Investees

NAMES, LOCATIONS, AND RELATED INFORMATION OF INVEST EES OVER WHICH THE COMPANY EXERCISES SIGNIFICANT IN FLUENCE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 5

-48 -

Original Investment Amount Balance as of September 30, 2009 Net Income Equity 'in the
September 30, December 31, Carrying (Losses) of the Eamings
. . . 2009 2008 . Value Investee (Losses)
Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Busesses and Products (Foreign (Foreign Shares (in Percentagg of| (Foreign (Foreign (Note_ 1) Note

Currencies in | Currencies in Thousands) | - Ownership Currencies in | Currencies in (Foreign
Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands) | Thousands) Currencies in

Thousands)

The Company TSMC Global Tortola, British Virgidads Investment activities $ 42,327,245 42,327,245 1 100 $ 45,492,790% 318,351|$ 318,351 |Subsidiary

TSMC Partners Tortola, British Virgin Islands Isément in companies involved in the design, 31,456,130 31,456,130 988,268 100 32,627,788 (186,169 (186,169)Subsidiary
manufacture, and other related business in the
semiconductor industry.

VIS Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Research, design, developnmeanufacture, 13,232,288 13,232,288| 628,223 37 9,410,696 1,893 (300,883|)Jnvestee accounted f
packaging, testing and sale of memory using equity method
integrated circuits, LSI, VLSI and related parts

SSMC Singapore Fabrication and supply of integratecuits 5,120,028 5,120,028, 314 39 5,899,305 723,310 132,823|Investee accounted fi

using equity method

TSMC China Shanghai, China Manufacturing and selling of integrated circuit: 12,180,367 12,180,367 - 100 3,606,012 (2,613,274))  (2,614,520|Bubsidiary
the order of and pursuant to product design
specifications provided by custom

TSMC North America San Jose, California, U.S.A. leSand marketing of integrated circuits and 333,718 333,718 11,000 100 2,686,753 310,014 310,014 |Subsidiary
semiconductor devices

Xintec Taoyuan, Taiwan Wafer level chip size pajhg service 1,357,890 1,357,890 93,081 41 1,372,699 (254,952 (123,929)Jnvestee with a

controlling financia|
interest

VTAF Il Cayman Islanc Investing in new sta-up technlogy companie 1,703,16: 1,440,24 - 98 1,341,39¢ (205,33() (19¢,264)|Subsidiar

VTAF I Cayman Islands Investing in new start-eplinology companies 1,036,422 1,036,422 - 98 1,059,820 (174,693 (171,199)Subsidiary

GucC Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Researching, developing, rfeoturing, testing 386,568 386,568 46,688 36 960,442 343,568 121,958|Investee with a
and marketing of integrated circuits controlling financia

interest

Emerging Alliance Cayman Islands Investing in reart-up technology companie 966,596 986,797 - 99 319,571 (88,558 (88,115 )Subsidiary (Note 3)

TSMC Europe Amsterdam, the Netherlands Marketimyengineering supporting activitie: 15,749 15,749 - 100 152,965 25,714 25,714 |Subsidiary (Note 3)

TSMC Japan Yokohama, Japan Marketing activities 83,760 83,760 6 100 136,710 926 926 |Subsidiary (Note 3)

TSMC Korea Seoul, Korea Customer service and feahsupport activities| 13,656 13,656 80 100 18,115 2,136 2,136 |Subsidiary (Note 3)

TSMC Partnel TSMC Developmet Delaware, U.S.£ Investment activitie US§  0.001 |US§  0.001 1 10¢ US$ 690,624 | US$ 52¢ Note 2 Subsidiar

VisEra Holding Company Cayman Islands Investmemiimpanies involved in the designuUS$ 43,000 US$ 43,000 43,000 49 US$ 68,198US$ (4,501) Note2 Investee accounted f]
manufacturing, and other related businesses in using equity method
the semiconductor industry

ISDF Il Cayman Islanc Investing in new sta-up technology compani |US$  32,28¢ |US§  32,28¢ 32,28¢ 97 US$ 28,132 |USY  3,02( Note 2 Subsidiar

TSMC Technology Delaware, U.S.A. Engineering suppotivities Us$ 0.001US$  0.001 1 100 US$ 8,932 US$ 524 Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)

ISDF Cayman Islands Investing in new start-up teddgy companies | US$ 7,680S$ 7,680 7,680 97 us$ 7,746/ US$  (1,181) Note 2 Subsidiary

TSMC Canad Ontario, Canac Engineering support activiti uss 2,300 |US$ 2,30C 2,30 10C uss 3,057 |US§ 155 Note 2 Subsidiary (Note ¢

Mcube Inc.(Common Stock) Delaware, U.S.A. Reseatelielopment, and sale of uss$ 800 - 5,333 74 us$ 800 - Note 2 Investee accounted f]
micro-semiconductor device using equity method

Mcube Inc.(Preferred Stock) Delaware, U.S.A. Regealevelopment, and sale of uss$ 1,000 - 1,000 10 us$ 1,000 - Note 2 Investee accounted f]
micro-semiconductor device using equity method

TSMC Development WaferTech Washington, U.S.A. Mawtifring, selling, testing and US$ 380,000 US$ 380,000 293,637 100 US$ 196,673US$  (7,882)  Note 2 Subsidiary
computer-aided designing of integrated circits
and other semiconductor devices
VisEra Holding Company|VisEra Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Manufacturing and sellifgkectronic parts angUS$ 91,041 US$ 91,041 253,120 89 US$ 120,401US$  (5,099) Note 2 Subsidiary
providing turn-key services in back-end coldgr
filter fabrication, package, test, and optical
solution:
(Continued)



Original Investment Amount Balance as of September 30, 2009 N Equity in the
et Income Earnings
September 30, December 31, Carrying (Losses) of the L 9
. o 2009 2008 . Vaiue Investee (Losses)
Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Busesses and Products (Foreign (Foreign Shares (in | Percentage of| (Foreign (Foreign (Note 1) Note
gn an Thousands) Ownership 'gn | an (Foreign
Currencies in | Currencies in Currencies in | Currencies in O
Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands) | Thousands) Currencies in
Thousands)
VTAF Il Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd. Taipei, iT@n Manufacturing and selling of electronic partsl | US$ 1,705| US$ 1,705 4,590 51 Us$ 1,055 US$ (689 Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
researching, developing, and testing of RFID
Aiconn Technology Corp. Taipei, Taiwan Wholesaliapcommunication equipments, andS$ 1,777\ US$ 1,777 4,500 41 Us$ 730| US$ (836 Note 2 Investee accounted fi
manufacturing wired and wireless using equity method
communication equipments (Note 3)
Growth Fund Cayman Islands Investing in new siartechnology companies  US$ 1,550S% 700 - 100 uss 856 US$ (94 Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S./ Investing in new sta-up technology compani - - - 62 - - Note 2 Subsidiary (Note :
VTAF II \VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S.A. Investing imew start-up technology companies - - - 31 - - Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
GuC GUC-NA US.A Consulting services in main prodc usg 8C0 | US$ 80C 80C 10C 36,870 3,632 Note 2 Subsidiary (Note :
GUC-Japan Japan Consulting services in main pteduc JPY 30,000 JPY 30,000 1 100 13,062 1,353 Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
GUC-Europe The Netherlands Consulting servicesam products EUR 100EUR 50 - 100 5,281 318 Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
GUC-BVI British Virgin Island: Investment activitie uss 50 - 5C 10C 148t (127) Note 2 Subsidiary (Note :
Emerging Alliance VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S.A. Bsting in new start-up technology companigs - - - 7 - - Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
Note 1: Equity in earnings/losses of investeesuielthe effect of unrealized gross profit fromleifes.
Note 2: The equity in the earnings/losses of threstee company is not reflected herein as such eni®already included in the equity in the earsirigsses of the investor company.
Note 3: Equity in earnings/losses was determinsgdb@n the unreviewed financial statements. (Concluded)
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

INFORMATION OF INVESTMENT IN MAINLAND CHINA
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 6

Accumulated

Investment Flows

Accumulated

Outflow of Oultflow of Accumulated
Total Amount of Investment Investment Equity in the |Carrying Value Inward
Investee Company Main Businesses and Paid-in Capital Method of from Taiwan from Taiwan | Percentage of Earnings as of Remittance of
Products (RMB in Investment as of Outflow Inflow as of Ownership (Losses) September 30,/ Earnings as of
Thousand) January 1, 2004 September 30, (Note 2) 2009 September 30,
(US$in 2009 (US$ in 2009
Thousand) Thousand)
TSMC China Manufacturing and selling off  $12,180,367 (Note 1) $12,180,367 $ - $ $12,180,367 100% $(2,614,520) $3,606,012 $ -
integrated circuits at the (RMB3,070,623) (US$371,000) (US$371,000)
order of and pursuant to
product design specificatio
provided by customers

Accumulated Investment in Mainland
China as of September 30, 2009

(US$ in Thousand)

Investment Amounts Authorized by
Investment Commission, MOEA
(US$ in Thousand)

Upper Limit on Investment
(US$ in Thousand)

$12,180,367
(US$371,000)

$12,180,367
(US$371,000)

$12,180,367
(US$371,000)

Note 1: Direct investments US$371,000 thousandSMT China.

Note 2: Amount was recognized based on the revidinadcial statements.
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